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Landmark events of the Council in 40 years
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In the 1970s, the global oil crisis led to high inflation
with prices soaring on essential daily commodities
such as rice and edible oil. Against this backdrop, the
Consumer Council was established in April 1974.
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The Consumer Council was founded. Retail Prices
of Major Foodstuffs Report was broadcast daily on
the radio for price comparison of market shoppers.
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1974

The function of the Council was expanded to
include services in addition to goods.
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The forerunner of CHOICE magazine — Consumers
Monthly Newsletter was launched with a print run
of 30,000 copies. In 1976, the debut of CHOICE
magazine, carrying the first product test on
cooking oil.
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1975

The Consumer Council Ordinance was
commenced to incorporate the Consumer
Council and define its functions and powers.
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The Council became a member of the
International Organisation of Consumers
Unions (presently known as the Consumers
International), striving for the betterment of
consumer rights.
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1977

The economic take-off transformed Hong Kong from an
industrial society to a financial centre. The service
industry rose to be one of the most important sectors
with consumers paying more and more attention to the
quality of goods and services.

RN AR IRt SEASRPL REEKARE
BENITRC— HEERERYRARBNER -

As Hong Kong moved forward to further establish its status as Asia’s Financial
Centre, the public demanded better regulations on sale practices. The
Council conducted research and promoted a number of consumer protection
policies and legislation during this period. Meanwhile, the economic growth
also led to a property market boom and rampant speculation; property prices
reached a historical high in 1997.
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The Council named traders for
malpractices and a total of 34 shops
were named in the 80s.
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1981

A number of major travel agencies went
into closure. The authorities accepted the
Council’s proposal of redress measures to
safeguard consumer interests and
amended the Travel Agents Ordinance.
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1986

CHOICE published its first test report on
condoms that saw its circulation soar to a
historical high of 73,000 copies, a record
still unsurpassed.
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1988

A publicity video was launched focusing on
outbound packaged tour travel with the slogan
- Consumers have the right to be informed, the
more you ask, the smarter you are.
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1989

| CHOICE

Liberalised Telecommunication Market
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The Council called for abolition in
phases of the Interest Rate Agree-
ment and the recommendation was
supported by the Government.
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The Council published the study
report Competition Policy: the Key

The Supply of Services (Implied to Hong Kong's Future Economic

Terms) Ordinance, the Unconscio-
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Hong Kong's economy was hit hard by the SARS epidemic and the financial
crisis. In 2003, a post-SARS open market policy stimulated a tourism boom

helping to stabilise the economy. In 2008, the Lehman Brothers mini-bond

default triggered off a financial crisis worldwide. In the following years, the

economy in Hong Kong recovered steadily to return to its right track.
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Research and tests were conducted on
surgical face masks, sanitation and
sterilisation products and other items
claiming to be effective against SARS.
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CHOICE reported cases of women
suffering serious complications after
using PAAG for breast augmentation.
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A new website Shopsmart dedicated to
Mainland tourists was launched.
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2008

2009

After 23 years of effort to advocate a

standardised definition of Saleable Area,

an agreement was finally reached by
various parties concerned.
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For the first time, consumer complaints
exceeded the 40,000-case threshold
including 8,274 cases relating to the
Lehman Brothers mini-bond default.
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The Consumer Legal Action Fund
assisted some of the consumers who
were aggrieved by the sale of Lehman
Brothers related financial products.
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Rapid technology development and proliferation of internet shopping posed
new challenges to consumer protection with growing attention to individual
personal privacy and sustainable consumption.
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A three-year strategic plan was
announced with sustainable consump-
tion becoming an important focus in

The Council co-organisd the 19th Cl World
Congress, drawing a global assembly of
over 700 delegates from 80 countries, the

: highest attendance in the history of the the future.
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The year under review (2014-15) marked an important milestone
in the history of the Consumer Council, commemorating its 40"
Anniversary of founding. It marked four decades of devoted public
service, dedicated to the betterment of consumer welfare, through
thick and thin the changing fortunes of economy and the rising
tide of consumer demands. It also marked a historic watershed
for the beginning of a new realm of consumer protection and
empowerment.

We do look back with pride the past achievements we have so
resolutely pursued with tenacity to bring them into fruition, and more
than ever before, we are confident that the new direction forward
as embodied in the current three-year strategic plan, will lead the
Consumer Council to a new horizon in consumer protection.

In retrospect, the Council has covered an awful lot of work, both in
diversity and enormity, that touches upon virtually every facet of the
consumer daily life — be it health and safety, unfair trade and pricing
practices, market competition and transparency, the environment
and sustainable consumption, legal protection and redress, or
a myriad of issues impacting on the rights and interests of the
consumer public. That is somehow inevitable given that consumption
is a lifelong affair from cradle to grave.

CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE
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Professor WONG Yuk-shan, BBS, JP
Chairman
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We are responsive to the socio-economic and technological
changes, in particular the new challenges brought on by the
digital age such as online shopping and e-commerce, the impact
of an influx of visitors and immigrants from the Mainland, and the
emergence of a 'silver-haired’ market due to ageing population, to
mention but a few.

For the year in review, | am very pleased to say that we had yet
another busy and fruitful year. In commemoration of the 40"
Anniversary, a program of activities and events was organised
throughout the year to showcase and reinforce public awareness of
the solid progress attained in the history of the Council, consumer
rights and responsibilities, and the importance of consumer
vigilance.

Enlighten — Collaborate — Innovate was the theme adopted to
commemorate the anniversary: Enlighten because only when
consumers are enlightened will they take full charge of not just
their rights but also responsibilities for the impact they create on
the marketplace and environment; Collaborate as only through
collaborative efforts in concert can we amplify the resources needed
to cope with ever-rising new challenges and issues; and Innovate
since only an innovative approach for ideas and solutions can give
us the needed capacity to embrace the new era of challenges in
consumer protection.

The Council was most actively involved in consultations on
implementation following enactment of the three vital consumer
protection legislations — the Competition Ordinance, the Trade
Descriptions (Unfair Trade Practices) (Amendment) Ordinance 2012
and the Residential Properties (First-hand Sales) Ordinance. They
have taken the Council long years of research and advocacy to bring
them into place. However, we will not be complacent. Our continuing
role is to see to it that they are enforced effectively to the ultimate
benefits of consumers.

The combined publicity efforts of the Government and the Council
on the amended Trade Descriptions Ordinance on fairness in
the market, and the legal sanction against unfair trade practices
have heightened awareness of consumers and traders alike.
Enforcement is going strong with the effort of the Customs and
Excise Department with which we have established a mechanism
for referral of consumer complaints where applicable for possible
investigative action.
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During the year, we have put forward our suggestions on the
enforcement guidelines of the Competition Commission with the
emphasis on a consumer welfare approach in interpreting the spirit
of competition rules.

The year also saw the release of two important indepth study
reports, on the sales of first-hand residential properties, and the
future development of the electricity market respectively. Both
reports generated extensive public attention galvanising immense
public discourse on the imperative for reform and enhanced
consumer protection in these sectors.

In November, our findings in the the report on Study on the Sales
of First-hand Residential Properties revealed that certain problems
remained unchecked after the Residential Properties (First-hand
Sales) Ordinance had been in implementation for a year and a half.
Such deep-rooted practices as aggressive tactics to make quick
onsite sales, units released in small batches resulting in possible
market speculation, confusing exaggerated claims and information
seemed to persist. Improvement in official oversight and the key
areas highlighted in the report is needed.

In December, our report on Searching for New Directions — A Study
of Hong Kong Electricity Market has stimulated much-needed
informed public discussions on this complex regulatory affair. The
study was undertaken with expert assistance of the Consumers
International on overseas regulatory reform experience and its
implications for consumers as well as extensive consultation with
local stakeholder groups including the power companies, industry
and environmental groups, academia and Government agencies.
Three broad elements of regulation, competition and sustainability
in the electricity market were examined.

Any reform it seems will have to strike a fine balance in reliability,
environmental performance and affordability. No doubt the Council
will continue to be proactive in its role to promote consumer
interests and a new regulatory regime that could bring sustainable
and economic benefits to consumers from the electricity sector.

A working group led by myself was set up to steer and provide advice
on the strategic direction in promoting sustainable consumption.
The Council sets out in its strategic plan its goal to contribute to
the development and education of sustainable consumption in
Hong Kong. A series of work is in progress to establish the long-
term strategic framework in facilitating the delivery of the mission
in sustainable consumption. We have undertaken a major study to
establish consumers’ knowledge of, behaviour in and the priorities
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for sustainable consumption so as to form a baseline for designing
education efforts and ongoing tracking. In 2014, we also undertook
a detailed analysis to determine how Hong Kong's electricity sector
could be reformed to increase the use of renewable electricity and
energy efficiency, and submitted our point of views to the recent
Government consultation.

Much remains to be done. We are scheduled to release a number
of our studies on topics such as online purchase behaviour and
consumer arbitration feasibility. Work is also at an advanced stage
to launch the Council’s revamped website shortly. The work ahead is
formidable but with our new guiding motto Enlighten — Collaborate —
Innovate and your unfailing support, we are confident of the success
of our mission.

In closing, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to the retiring
Council Members during the year for their support and invaluable
contribution: Mr Thomas CHENG, Mr Bankee KWAN, Ms Miranda
KWOK; and a warm welcome to the incoming Council Members: Mr
Ambrose LAM, Mr Kevin LAM, Mr Kent WONG. | would also like to
express my heartfelt thanks to the outgoing Co-opted Members for
their expert guidance: Prof. Ron HUI, Mr Larry KWOK, Mr Michael LI,
the Hon Charles Peter MOK; and welcome to an incoming Co-opted
Member Prof. Nora TAM.

My personal appreciation and gratitude is reserved for the Council’s
Chief Executive Ms Gilly WONG for her foresight and leadership
of the day-to-day operation of the Council, and the staff for their
dedication and professionalism in serving the consumers.

Professor WONG Yuk-shan, BBS, JP
Chairman
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MEMBERSHIP OF THE CONSUMER COUNCIL
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[Cdiizsa ¢/ I ] U5+

CHAIRMAN
T

Prof. WONG Yuk-shan
BBS, JP

HENHR

eSS

NG

Mr Thomas CHENG Kin-hon Dr David CHUNG Wai-keung
SR e A S fram il

VICE-CHAIRMAN
il

Mr Philip LEUNG Kwong-hon
et

Ms Miranda KWOK Pui-fong Mr Ambrose LAM San-keung, JP
RIS 2 PR IRAE A
K-t

Dr Karen SHUM Hau-yan Prof. WONG Kam-fai, MH
YRR B TSR
SEEER



&
@

Mr Samuel CHAN Ka-yan, JP Mr Clement CHAN Kam-wing Ms Grace CHAN Man-yee Ms Jo Jo CHAN Shuk-fong
RSB R At Wit 2 e PScE At Bl 7 2t
KFapt:
=
A
Ms Amy FUNG Dun-mi The Hon. Steven HO Chun-yin Prof. Michael HUI King-man Mr Bankee KWAN Pak-hoo
PR A fr R B i WL (ISR e

et @
& ﬁt‘
Mr Kevin LAM Sze-cay Dr Raymond LEUNG Siu-hong Mr Keith LIE Kin-fu Prof. Angela NG Lai-ping
M SE R A FE L st SRR

2
Q@

Ms WONG Shu-ming Mr Alvin WONG Tak-wai
Eagi e B



CO-OPTED MEMBERS OF THE CONSUMER COUNCIL
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MANAGEMENT TEAM OF THE CONSUMER COUNCIL
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Ms Gilly WONG Fung-han
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Principal Public Affairs Officer Principal Planning & Trade Practices Officer (Acting) Principal Complaints & Advice Officer

Ms Deanna CHEUNG Kin-wah Dr Victor HUNG Tin-yau Ms Sana LAI Tik-shan
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Head of Human Resources Division Head of Finance & Administration Division Head of Information Technology Division
Mr LEE Wing-kai Ms Stephanie LING Yee-mi Mr Ricky NG Chi-wah
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Head of Legal Affairs Division Head of Consumer Education Division Principal Research & Survey Officer
Mr Eddie NG Yick-hung Mr WONG Koon-shing Ms Rosa WONG Wan-ming
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Highlights of activities in commemoration of
4 0th anniversary
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2014.04.07

The 40th Anniversary Celebration Cocktail Reception was held to kick off a series of commemorative activities.
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2014.04.06-09

The 1st Cross-Strait Symposium on Consumer Protection was organised in Hong Kong and Macau.

£—E TREIU B E (RS RIE  NEBTIRPIRT -

B E‘lﬁﬁiﬂ]ﬁiﬂﬁﬁéﬁﬁ“ﬁﬂ

(i |1 -I” i & + | HE TR

2014.10.07 - 2015.02.13
The Council sponsored “The Best Thematic Micro-film Award" in the
8th Mobile Film Production Contest.
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2014.11.11
Debut of Metropolitan Consumers TV features — a production by RTHK sponsored by the Council.
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2015.01.30 - 2015.03.29
4x10 Comic Exhibition was held consecutively in Lok Fu, Tseung Kwan O and Kwai Fong depicting changes of
consumption situations over the past decades in the eyes of renowned comic artists.
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THE CONSUMER COUNCIL

HEHALZHR .

The Council is committed to

representing the voices of consumers by advocating their
interests, enhancing their welfare and empowering them to protect

their own rights and values.
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The Consumer Council is a statutory body which was established
in 1974. Pursuant to the Consumer Council Ordinance (Cap 216),
the Council’s functions are to protect and promote the interests of
consumers of goods and services and purchasers, mortgagors and
lessees of immovable property by:

e collecting, receiving and disseminating information concerning
goods and services and immovable property

® receiving and examining complaints from and giving advice to
consumers of goods and services and purchasers, mortgagors
and lessees of immovable property

e taking such action as it thinks justified by the information in its
possession, including tendering advice to the Government or to
any public officer

® encouraging business and professional associations to establish
codes of practice to regulate the activities of their members

® undertaking such other functions as the Council may adopt with the
prior approval of the Chief Executive in Council of the Government

Consumer Council Membership

The Council comprises a Chairperson, a Vice-Chairperson' and
not more than 20 other Members® who are all appointed by the
Government for a term of not exceeding two years. They may be
reappointed upon expiry of their respective terms of office.

In the year under review, three new Members, namely Mr Ambrose
LAM San-keung, JP, Mr Kevin LAM Sze-cay and Mr Kent WONG Siu-
kee joined the Council.

The Council would like to express its heartfelt thanks to Mr Thomas
CHENG Kin-hon, Mr Bankee KWAN Pak-hoo and Ms Miranda
KWOK Pui-fong for their support, devotion and contributions
during their terms.
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1 See Appendix 1 for the list of former Chairpersons and Vice-Chairpersons of the Consumer Council.
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2 See Appendix 2 for the list of Full Council Members and Co-opted Members.
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Council and Committees

The Council operates through a committee structure comprising
12 Committees and Working Groups®. Full Council meetings are
held on a bi-monthly basis. The Council will co-opt professionals of
different disciplines as members of relevant committees in order to
benefit from their expertise and to facilitate studies in specific fields.
The Council administers the Consumer Council Legal Action Fund
via a Board of Administrators and a Management Committee.

Sustainable consumption is a new area of commitment under the
Council’s three-year strategic plan. In the year under review, the
Working Group on Sustainable Consumption Programme was set up
to steer and provide advice on the strategic direction in promoting
sustainable consumption. Led by the Council Chairman, the Working
Group comprised the Council Vice-chairman, three other Council
Members and a Co-opted Member, Prof. Nora TAM Fung-Yee, BBS,
JP, who is an expert in environmental biology.

In 2014-15, Prof. Ron HUI Shu-yuen, Mr Larry KWOK Lam-kwong,
BBS, JP, Mr Michael LI Hon-shing, KSJ, BBS, JP, and The Hon. Charles
Peter MOK, JP retired as Co-opted Member. We would like to
express our gratitude for their support and expert contributions to
the Council.

The Council Office

The Council Office, headed by the Chief Executive, employs 146
staff.

The Council Office operates with nine functional divisions, namely,
Complaints and Advice Division, Consumer Education Division,
Finance and Administration Division, Human Resources Division,
Information Technology Division, Legal Affairs Division, Planning and
Trade Practices Division, Public Affairs Division and Research and
Survey Division®.

The Council is an equal opportunities employer, with the number
of disabled employees representing 0.7% of the Council Office's
permanent staff in 2014-15.

Finance

The Council derives its income mainly from Government subvention.
Other sources of income (approximately 5%) include proceeds from
the sales of the Council’s CHOICE magazine and interest income.

The total recurrent and non-recurrent expenditures for the year under
review was HK$105.75 million and HK$5.65 million respectively”.
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3 See Appendix 3 for full list of Committees and Working Groups.
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4 See Appendix 4 for the organisation chart of the Consumer Council.
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5 See Appendix 5 for the Auditor’s Report and Financial Statements for the accounts of the Consumer Council for 2014-15.
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RESOLVING DISPUTES BETWEEN
CONSUMERS AND BUSINESSES

i 51 2% - B g 4 Z [l PR L

The Council seeks redress for
consumers by means of conciliation through which disputes are resolved
between consumers and traders by mutually acceptable agreements.
Complaints are a useful source of information which may sometimes
lead to the issue of timely alerts to the public about trade malpractices
while enabling law enforcement agencies to take relevant actions.
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Complaints and Enquiries Received e EYE
Complaints and enquiries are received via telephone, fax, AECFEBEZT BE - ZEREBEZKNEE
correspondence or the internet. During the year, 87% of all enquiries BSR s TR IE s o A T BN SR E 7% RESE
were received by telephone, while 54% of complaints were lodged in S R4 A B RE R E A o
FI=l) A o Cly=) I

writing or via the internet.
HERERHET

Complaints Statistics Breakdown
AEERAEGHERBI101,560REEEAR

During the year, a total of 101,560 enquiries and 29,547 complaints

were received, representing a 6% decrease in the number of 29,547 B ERFF - HH2013- 14 FFHEE
complaint cases compared with 31,334 in 2013-14. 31,334 REFFEE M TKE%

Although the Council is not a law enforcement agency and it BARS WA WREAEEND £
does not possess any investigative powers, the Council was able 2014-15FEEBI3%AIRENER  KAR2HAE
to achieve a high resolution rate of complaint cases by means of EEZR(BEM) - YN FgYEIE BB o RN
conciliation: at 73% of cases with pursuable grounds in 2014-15 (See AR Ae@BBI0FAZEEE SR SRS
Fig 4). For cases where traders refused to settle or offer redress, 18 R E A

the complainants were advised to seek redress via other channels,
including civil action®.

FIG.1 COMPARISON OF COMPLAINTS IN THE PAST 3 YEARS
E— BE=FRENRFEF

Total number of complaints #%ZF{EIZZHEE 26,955 31,334 29,547

6 See Appendix 6 for contact information of Consumer Advice Centres.
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FIG.2 TOP TEN CONSUMER COMPLAINTS ON INDUSTRIES IN 2014-15
Bl— 2014-15FEE+{HBHRT
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FIG.3 NATURE OF CONSUMER COMPLAINTS IN 2014-15
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FI1G.4 RESOLUTION RATE OF CASES WITH PURSUABLE GROUNDS IN 2014-15

B 2014-155 EREM IR

Total number of cases received ¥ ERAEE]

No. of cases with pursuable grounds aJ BR R EFEIZE’

No. of cases in progress {H7E IR EHAIEZE
No. of cases resolved EFERIVEZE

Resolution rate FA{EpIHER

Top Five Consumer Complaints
1 Telecommunications Services

Despite a significant drop of 23% over the preceding year,
telecommunications services continued to be the top category
receiving the most complaints with 5,091 cases in 2014-15. The bulk
of the complaints were related to disputes concerning fees and
charges (57%) and the quality of services (19%).

2 Telecommunications Equipment

Complaints relating to telecommunications equipment came second
with a hefty rise of 79% from 2,325 cases in 2013-14 to 4,152 cases in
2014-15. Nearly 96% of the complaints (3,974 cases) involved mobile
phones, including 2,361 cases of consumer dissatisfaction over the
pre-order sales of a newly launched smartphone in high demand.
The nature of the complaints was mainly about sales tactics (1,657
cases) and late or non-delivery of products (1,053 cases).

3 Travel Services

Travel services came third as disputes related to travel services rose
year by year and recorded 1,941 cases, an increase of 19% compared
with that of 2013-14. Disputes regarding airline services and air tickets
drew 743 cases and 619 cases, representing an increase of 67% and
15% respectively. Sea cruise cases recorded an increase close to
threefold from five cases last year to 23 cases this year. Complaints
were mostly about price disputes (593 cases), quality of services (543
cases) and late/non-delivery of services (408 cases) which included
flight delay and cancellation.

4 Electrical Appliances

Electrical appliances came fourth with 1,614 cases, a slight drop
of 6% over the year before. Quality of goods (38%) and repair and
maintenance (32%) were the main areas of disputes within this
category.

5 Food And Entertainment Services

The number of complaints in relation to food and entertainment
services remained in the top five categories with 1,381 cases,
although it witnessed a drop of 12% compared with that of 2013-14.
Service quality (414 cases), sales practices (288 cases) and charge
disputes (273 cases) were the major areas of customer dissatisfaction.

29,547
20,622
1,545
13,894
73%

EhEERER
1 EFRRE
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2 ®ENzEtd
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7 Anonymous complaints, cases with insufficient information, and complaints outside the Council’s terms of reference are in general non-pursuable.
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Trends of Consumer Complaints
Online Shopping Disputes on the Rise

As online shopping has become part of people’s daily life,
complaints arising from this activity reached 5,403 cases, an increase
of 52% over last year, and involving spending of over HK$20 million.
Most complaints stemmed from purchase of mobile phones (2,336
cases, up 497%) followed by online booking of air tickets and
accommodation (1,102 cases, up 42%). Among these complaints,
35% involved sales practices (1,869 cases, up 365%) alleging that the
terms and conditions of the online purchase were not clearly
explained to or readily available for consumers at the
time of placing orders. Disputes arising from late
or non-delivery of goods or services purchased
online recorded 1,797 cases, an increase of 30%
and postal and courier services 43 cases, an /// ’
increase of 115%.

While enjoying the convenience of internet

shopping, consumers need to be vigilant of the

terms and conditions of the offers to ensure their

rights and obligations under the contract. The
traders, on the other hand, are urged to build a sound
online shopping mechanism and a fair transaction platform
to boost consumer confidence.

Double-digit Drop in Tourist Complaints

The Council received a total of 2,623 tourist complaints in 2014-15,
a drop of 11% from the previous year. Complaints filed by Mainland
tourists continued to be the overwhelming majority with 2,150 cases,
albeit a 10% reduction compared to last year.

The more common tourist complaints were
related to expensive Chinese herbs/
ginseng (324 cases) and a sharp increase

of 80% was recorded compared to

last year. Medicine/health food

(305 cases, down 34%) and
telecommunications equipment

(273 cases, down 14%) came

second and third on the list.

Most of the complaint cases

involved sales malpractices

(1,117 cases), representing

43% of all tourist complaints

and an 11% increase over the

past year.

To strengthen protection of

consumer against unfair trade

practices, the Council has been

working closely with the Customs \
and Excise Department and
exchanging updated information with it

on trade practice related complaints.
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CONSUMER COUNCIL
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The Council regularly releases complaint statistics to
alert the public about shopping entrapment.
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Naming of Malpractice Traders

In July 2014, an online shop selling infant products was named by the
Council for malpractices. It was the first ever public naming against
online sales tactics detrimental to consumer interests.

The Council had received over 91 consumer complaints against the
trader, involving an amount of HK$285,000, for partial or non-delivery
of goods and undue delay or failing to provide full /partial refund for
non-delivery of goods.

The naming exercise served as timely alert to consumers and
deterrence to dishonest traders especially the online ones.

Birth Enterprise (China) Limited BE{ % (PE) BRAF]
Trading as birth.hk ZEEEHE

Unit K, 17/F, Block 4, Golden Dragon Industrial Centre,
No. 182-190 Tai Lin Pai Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories
IR BB E182-19058 8 T 2R/ 718K=

HBELHAIRBEBE

AER2014F7H A—EEELRLEMRAHE
EMAREBFE HEFLARES -ERAG
BERARMLEEHEENEMNEETRMED
MR R1TE

AEHFBIIRUHZPEMEF HARF
EEEREHIRAMBARMNFTEE R TLREARK
FUREIES A EERERBIE A PR
JEHE1£285,0007T

AREBEENENRBEAREFERNEZEH;E L
HLgas BHEBNS LEEEERE

BRER-

$
$
-
- 4




IMPROVING PRODUCT QU
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The Council undertakes research
and test of consumer products with the aim to evaluate
the safety, efficacy, ease of use, durability and environmental
sustainability of the products. This function has the beneficial dual

impact on both consumers and manufacturers.
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Research and Test Reports

During the year, 58 product research and test 58
reports were published in CHOICE magazine. When

products were found to fall short of full compliance
with mandatory or international standards, the Council
notified the relevant regulatory bodies for immediate
follow-up actions, while also making recommendations to
the manufacturers and their agents for rectification and product
improvement. The Council’s findings and follow-up efforts have
proven over the years to be an effective mechanism in calling for
positive outcomes in regulations and enforcement®.

Types of Product Tests

Product tests published in CHOICE can be categorised into three types.

The first type includes tests initiated and undertaken solely by the
Council using its own resources. The majority of these are conducted by
independent laboratories in Hong Kong. Should local testing facilities
be unable to meet the Council's requirements, appropriate laboratories
in other jurisdictions were commissioned.

The second type concerns joint tests conducted by the International
Consumer Research & Testing (ICRT). The ICRT is an international
consortium of more than 35 independent consumer organisations. As
an active member, the Council has benefited from the ICRT's joint tests
through which resources and experience from other markets can be
effectively utilised.

The third type involves product tests conducted with relevant test
reports published by the Council jointly with various local Government
and statutory organisations.
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8 See Appendix 7 and 8 for the lists of product testing reports, product indepth studies and market survey reports published during 2014-15.
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Food
Traditional CNY Festive Food

The Council examined nutrition labels on
40 prepackaged Chinese New Year (CNY)
festive foods from nine chain pastry
stores, including 14 sweet puddings, 15
turnip/taro cakes, and 11 sesame cookies |
and crispy triangles. A lot of traditional
CNY favourites were unfortunately
found to be high in the three nutrients -
sugar, salt and fat - detrimental to health if
consumed excessively.

Half of all sweet pudding samples were found

to contain at least 25 grams of sugar per 100 grams ——

serving, which exceeded 50% of the World Health
Organisation (WHO) recommended daily intake limit for free sugars.
According to the nutrition labelling on the package, the pudding with
the highest sugar content was found to contain 43.2 grams of sugar per
100 grams serving, equivalent to nine sugar cubes or just slightly below
the WHO recommended daily intake limit on free sugar. However,
after the publication of the report, the related company claimed that
a mistake had been made during the preparation of its label. The
report not only warned consumers of the generally high sugar content
in sweet puddings. It also raised a concern that the accuracy of the
nutrient labelling seemingly was not always verified and monitored.

The majority of crispy triangle and sesame cookie samples surveyed
were considered high in total fat and saturated fat which is highly
correlated to risk of cardiovascular disease. Consumers were
warned to be wary of the sodium intake from turnip and taro cakes.
Surprisingly high sodium content was also found in sweet sesame
cookies. In fact, in 100 grams serving, two sesame cookie samples
had the highest sodium content among samples in all categories.
Food high in energy is often linked to overweight and obesity.
Crispy triangle and sesame cookie samples were found to contain an
average of 540 kcal of energy per 100 grams, which was equivalent
to 2.3 bowls of rice.

The report advised consumers to shop around and compare their
nutrition labels for sugar, salt (sodium), fat and energy contents, and
be cautious in the volume to buy.

Children's Meals

The Council and the Centre for Food Safety jointly tested
children's meal sets served in 15 restaurant chains. Food
and beverage items popular among children including
burgers, chicken wings, ribs, fries, noodles, pasta,
rice, sushi, corn, pizza, cola, juice, milk, cake and
sundae were tested to compare the energy and
nutrient content of different children's meals against the
dietary recommended intakes or recommendations of the
Chinese Nutrition Society and WHO respectively.

The meal samples were found to be high in fat (including saturated
fat), sugar or sodium contents. In the worst cases, for children aged
between three and 11 years, they would have consumed, in a single
meal alone, in excess of their recommended daily intake of saturated
fat, sugar or sodium.
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On the basis of these findings, some of the children's meals were
clearly in need of reducing the fat, sugar or sodium contents. The
report advised parents to be wary of the presence of the high levels
of fat, sugar or sodium in such meals as it is detrimental to the health
of their children, especially when consumed frequently.

The report coincided with the theme of the World Consumer Rights
Day on 15 March 2015: ‘Consumer Rights to Healthy Food'. The
Consumers International called for a Global Convention to protect
and promote healthy diets.

Electrical Products

USB Power Supplies for Mobile Devices

The Council jointly with the Electrical and Mechanical
Services Department (EMSD) tested the safety of
20 USB power supplies with reference to the latest ‘
edition of international safety standard. The Council ;’
also supplemented tests on performance, energy e
efficiency and compatibility. Among these power
supplies, ten were associated with mobile phone
makers and ten supplied by other sources, including two
without any identification of the manufacturer.

Lesser-known brand power supplies are usually cheaper
and more versatile than those of the mobile-device brands,
but they were found to have safety issues. The two unbranded
samples failed the basic safety requirement of manufacturer
identification, which would be essential for the user to follow-up if
needed. Three samples were found unsatisfactory in the electric
strength test, while two samples were measured with severely
insufficient insulation distance. Other safety non-compliances were
found in the heating and resistance to heat tests. On compatibility,
non-mobile-phone branded models were found to be better than
mobile-device branded ones, in particular for charging up an Apple
iPad. Three models were found to exaggerate their own output
power. As users might have been attracted by such purported
specification offered at a lower price, the case had been referred to
the Customs and Excise Department for follow up.

Breadmakers

The Council conducted a test to evaluate the performance and safety
of 10 breadmakers in the market, with prices varying from HK$499 to
HK$2,380. Two models were found to fall short of the international
safety standards in terms of temperature rise or insulation distance. Test
results were forwarded to EMSD for follow up.

In the performance test, test results showed
that even though the same type of bread
was baked, the quality might vary for
different loaf sizes. Breadmakers were
generally energy efficient but varied
significantly in time efficiency. To make and
bake bread using the 500 grams programme
or a programme closest to 500 grams, it took
the models 168 minutes to 300 minutes, a difference
of two hours or more.
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Cosmetics And Personal Care

Slimming Claims of Vibration Platforms

The Council put under scrutiny the validity of marketing claims and
effectiveness of vibration platforms by a team of experts in the fields
of physiotherapy, sports science and orthopedics.

Suppliers of vibration platforms promoted the product as a home-
use exercise machine that could bring health benefits including
body weight reduction. Information was sought from the suppliers
to support their claims. In the opinion of the experts, on the basis of
the information supplied, the study found insufficient solid
evidence to support the claim that the use of vibration
platform alone could reduce body fat and body
weight.

Physiotherapists do use similar equipment
to perform vibration therapy on patient as it
helps improve muscle strength and balance
control. But such therapy needs to be prescribed
by physiotherapists in accordance with the client
type, vibration type, frequency and amplitude of vibration,
otherwise without a well-planned therapy protocol and suitable
exercise, the effect is minimal.

In the expert views, using vibration platforms to exercise the upper
limbs of the body might, in the long run, damage the nerve in the
upper limbs. Users should avoid sitting on the vibration platform to
prevent potential spinal injury. Knees should be kept slightly bent to
avoid transmitting the vibration to the head and causing discomfort.
Pregnant women, people implanted with pacemaker, and patients of
severe osteoporosis should not use vibration platforms.

Facial Tissues in Box and in Soft Packs

The Council tested 20 models including 13 in boxes and seven in
soft packs of facial tissues.

Labelling specifications such as size and number of sheets are
important for consumers to choose among products. Among the 13
box models, six were not labelled with the number
of sheets and most without length and width

of the paper. The other seven stated with

the number of sheets. However, only one

could match the stated number while
the rest were slightly less by 0.5% to 4%
according to the test on the samples
measured.

Among the seven soft pack models,
all were labelled with the number of
sheets but three had 2.2% to 4.3%
less sheets than stated.

Since the unit cost of tissues
varied significantly, the report urged
manufacturers of facial tissues to provide
better specification disclosure on the number
of plies and sheets, size and net weight.
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Anti-Wrinkle Face Creams

Product efficacy of skin care products is a matter of consumer
concern. The Council had joined forces with the ICRT in a global test
on 32 anti-wrinkle face creams. Of these, 11 were found available in
the Hong Kong market, with prices ranging from HK$24 to HK$214
per 10 ml (or grams). The best overall performer was the second

cheapest sample priced at HK$48 per ten
grams. And the cheapest sample worked
just as well as some of the more
expensive ones.

In the test conducted in Germany
| in winter time, each wrinkle
| cream sample was tested on

some 30 volunteers. Each

subject applied the test product
and a standard moisturiser (with
no wrinkle-reduction claim as a
control for comparison), one on
each side of the face, twice a day for a
period of four weeks.

The test confirmed that there was no miracle product sample
that could dramatically smooth out all facial wrinkles at the crow's
feet area (wrinkles around the outer corners of the eyes) after four
weeks of daily use. A good majority of the anti-wrinkle cream
samples in the test were found with similar performance as
the standard moisturiser. The report emphasised that
product effectiveness might vary with climate and
from individual to individual.

Baby Wipe Products

For convenience, many parents cleanse their

baby's bottom, face or hands with baby wipes.

The Council’s study on baby wipes suggested
preservatives in these products might cause harm to
the sensitive skin of babies.

By examining the ingredients on the product labels or
information provided by the suppliers, nine out of 44 models
were found to contain the preservative MIT(methylisothiazolinone),
which may lead to severe rash for some babies and young children.

Aside from preservatives, fragrances, fragrance allergens and
lanolin were other common allergens in baby wipe products. If rash
develops on the face, buttock and other areas after using a baby
wipe, and if the adverse reaction resolves after stopping the use
of the product, the skin reaction might be related to the use of the
baby wipe.

The report also compared the cost of baby wipes and found that
each piece might cost HK$0.18 to as much as HK$1.92, meaning
reducing their use might also save a lot of money.

The report advised parents to use plain water with cotton wool for
daily cleansing of baby's bottom and to consider baby wipe product
only in a situation where water could not be obtained.
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Household Products

Emulsion Paints

The Council tested ten models of water-based emulsion paints
to enhance public awareness of the problems of Volatile Organic
Compounds (VOCs) and indoor air quality.

VOCs are a common source of indoor air pollution and long-
term exposure to elevated levels of VOCs may cause respiratory
diseases and even nerve problems. The test found all models to
be within the maximum limit of 50 gram per litre stipulated under

the Air Pollution Control (Volatile Organic
Compounds) Regulation, with variation
ranging from under ten gram per litre to

25 gram per litre.

Small amounts of lead (20 ppm to 38
ppm) were detected in four models
of different colours. Minute amount of
arsenic (2.1 ppm to 2.5 ppm) was detected
in one model of different colours. Young
children are particularly susceptible to lead
poisoning which may adversely affect the child’s
healthy growth and mental development. Long-term exposure to
elevated concentrations of arsenic may increase the risk of skin
cancer, bladder cancer or heart disease. However, the contents
of the two heavy metals were in compliance with current eco-
labelling scheme requirements.

The test also assessed their durability including performance on
impact (resistance to impact by a falling object onto a paint film),
cross-hatch cutting (adhesion to substrate), scrub resistance and
mould resistance.

Children’s Products
Child Car Seats

The Council joined forces with the ICRT in a test report on 11 models
of child car seats available in the Hong Kong market. In the test,
each sample installed with a child dummy on a real car chassis was
subjected to stringent frontal and side impact tests. Results of the
frontal impact tests indicated that most samples performed well
when installed in rearward-facing position. In the side impact tests,
the performance of five samples scored a high rating. Two samples,
however, were less satisfactory.

The samples were also assessed for their safety design such as
the belt design and adjustment for children of different sizes. One
sample was found to have a good safety design when used for larger
children; but when used for a newborn baby, the belt could not be
adjusted tightly to properly fit the baby's body, thus that sample was
given only a relatively low score.

Furthermore, the test detected the presence of traces of a number
of hazardous substances in some samples that are potentially
harmful to the health of a child or the environment. The substances
concerned were formaldehyde, flame retardants and Polycyclic
Aromatic Hydrocarbons (PAHs).
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International Comparative Tests

During 2014-15, the Consumer Council joined forces with consumer
associations in other jurisdictions and stepped up the collaboration
with the ICRT to conduct international comparative tests involving:

® Audio-visual and optical products covering mini/micro Hi-Fi
systems, video projectors, wireless loudspeakers, home theatre
speakers, stereo headsets, compact cameras, interchangeable
lens cameras and camcorders

e Computer and telecommunications products comprising internet
security software, cloud storage services, smartphones, printers
and tablet PCs

® Automobile, road vehicles, and related products including child
car seats, bicycle helmets, cars (comprehensive testing) and car
crash safety

® Household, personal and travel products such as espresso coffee
makers, chef’s knifes, baby strollers and anti-wrinkle day creams

® Sports products including footballs and fitness tracker wristbands

Of the tests conducted, reports concerning anti-wrinkle day
creams and baby strollers turned out to be the most popular topics
among CHOICE magazine readers. The test results concerning
cameras, meanwhile, were viewed by a significant number of
browsers of the Council’'s Shopsmart website dedicated to visitors
from Mainland China.

International comparative tests not only help save resources, but
many of the tests also offer useful and practical purchase advice to
consumers, particularly for more expensive products.
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PROMOTING SUSTAINABLE C
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The Council promotes and supports sustainable consumption through

comparative product testing and dissemination of information which enables

consumers to make environmentally friendly choices, while also encouraging
consumers to help conservation of natural resources and reducing waste.
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Topical Issues on Sustainable Consumption

Over the years, the Council has looked into a number of topics
and issues in relation to sustainable consumption and conducted
comparative product testing, in which environmental parameters
such as energy efficiency, recyclability of products and packaging
materials, durability and emissions of volatile organic compounds
are often incorporated with a view to informing consumers about the
impacts of consumption on health and the environment. The Council
also sends submissions to the Government to support initiatives in
enacting legislations for environmental protection.

Electric Cars Shine in Test Performance

The Council published a report on 39 models of private
vehicles tested by the International Consumer //
Research & Testing (ICRT) in Europe, covering 25
petrol cars, six hybrid cars, five electric cars and |
three diesel cars. I

Overall ratings were based on safety,
environmental performance (energy
efficiency, emission of CO, and other
pollutants), ease of use, engine
and power-train performance, road
behaviour and comfort.

Among the models, the five electric cars generally performed well in
overall rating within their own category; they were at the top of the
overall rating in both the supermini and small family car categories.

The test report reinforced consumer confidence in the wider use
of electric vehicles to help improve roadside air quality and reduce
greenhouse gas emissions.

USB Power Chargers Vary in Performance

The introduction of USB as the general power supply specification
for small electronic and electrical devices can help reduce possible
wastage of stocking different power supplies with different power
connection designs.
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In the Council’s test on USB power supplies, energy efficiency
measurements were conducted with reference to the current
European Commission Code of Conduct (the Code). In general, no
load energy consumption (when the charger is on standby mode)
and average energy efficiency, measured and deduced from the test
data, were deemed satisfactory.

However, as the Code is due to be tightened in 2016, only a minority
of the tested samples would meet the updated requirements.
Hence, there would be room for improvement in energy efficiency
and consumption for these products.

In order to save energy, the report recommended users to switch off
or unplug the power supply after use.

Corporate Social Responsibility of Tablet PC Brands

The Council joined the ICRT's global survey on
. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) of the tablet
__ personal computer industry, and evaluated
the performance of the individual brands
in addressing CSR issues. Consumers are
encouraged to purchase products from brands
which perform well to protect labour rights and
the environment.

The survey indicated that the top performer had adequate supply
chain policies on ethical, labour and mineral sourcing requirements
and strong measures to improve product lifetime.

Making good use of the Government’s recycling programme for
used desk, portable and tablet computers could help alleviate
the environmental impact created by the disposal of electronics.
Nevertheless, the report recommended that consumers should always
consider repairing to prolong the life of their computers before disposal
so as to reduce waste.

In this aspect, the Council found that some brands did not provide
battery repair/replacement services in Hong Kong, which might
shorten the product life of their tablets.

Recycling of Consumables and
Collaborative Consumption

The Council conducted an overview of the
landscape in the recycling field, and the
findings were both informative and encouraging.

Used clothes were the most common
consumables to be recycled in an organised
system in Hong Kong. The recycled clothes
were donated to people in need not only locally
but also abroad to refugees or those of natural
calamities in Southeast Asian countries. Those
with lower quality would be recycled to make raw
materials or new products.

The study also found that the growing recycling of
used clothes had spawned an emerging collaborative

consumption market for second-hand apparel and fashion.

The Council cautioned that legislative measures might need to
be reviewed to regulate these new economic activities to strike a
balance between the interests of all stakeholders concerned.
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COLLECTING MARKET INFORMATION ON

GOODS AND SERVICES
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The Council collects and analyses market
information concerning services and trades that impact on the
everyday life of consumers, enabling consumers to compare and spend
wisely. Information and opinions are tracked on a regular and systematic basis in
order to monitor long-term trends and identify any issues of concern.
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Topics of Market Surveillance

During the year, market surveillance was carried out on a wide range
of market sectors and commodities, including supermarket prices,
supermarket price labelling, laundry services, textbook prices and
travel related services. Consumers were informed of the choices
available and quality of the services provided’.

Groceries

Annual Supermarket Price Survey

In the year under review, the Council continued its annual
supermarket price survey on scan data of a basket of 200 top-
selling items of commodities sold in three major supermarket chains.
Compared with 2012, the aggregate average price of the basket
increased by 0.9% in 2013. Among the 12 categories of products,
eight recorded an upward trend with aggregate average increases
ranging from 0.04% to 6.8%. Prepacked bread/cake and dairy
products/eggs recorded the most significant increases of 6.8% and
4.6% respectively, exceeding the 2013 Composite Consumer Price
Index of 4.3%. Prices for the four remaining categories were down,
ranging from -0.1% to -1.2%.

In the sub-categories, analysis showed more than half (25 out of 42)
increased in price from 0.4% to 11%; the one product group with
double-digit increase was prepacked cake (11%). Other product
groups with notable price increases were cheese (7.5%), ice cream
(6.9%), juice/juice drinks (6.2%), yoghurt/yoghurt drinks (6.2%). On the
other hand, 16 product groups were down in average price from 0.1%
to 4.5%, notably, infant diapers (-4.5%), soya drinks (-3.8%), beer (-3.6%),
shampoo (-3.5%), children and adult milk powder (-3.2%). Prepacked
soup was the only product group remained unchanged in price.
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Supermarket Price Labelling

The Council study revealed that the problem
of displayed prices on the shelves at variance with
scanned prices at the checkout was not uncommon.
In a total of 21 purchases on 252 discounted
items from five supermarket chain outlets, price
variance was detected in nearly 60% of these
transactions. In the majority of those cases,
they were found to charge more, ranging from
HK$0.4 to HK$9.1, or 4.2% to as high as 90%.
Such price discrepancy was often unknown to
the consumers, could seriously undermine the
consumers’ right to an informed choice.

Price discount is a frequent tactic deployed by supermarkets to promote
sales. An examination of price tags of major chains revealed a common
price labelling practice known as ‘strike through price’ — a strike through
line to cross out the higher price on the price tag without specification
of what it is. Such price labelling practice was unclear and confusing
to consumers who could only assume that the higher price was the
original price prior to discount. The Council further examined the price
tags of 12 specific items in three retail outlets for 31 consecutive days. It
discovered that one retail outlet did not sell any survey items at the ‘strike
through price’ within the month.

Supermarket Price Watch

The Council has been collecting and displaying daily prices of
products from five on-line food stores/supermarkets. The efficiency
of the Council's Supermarket Price Watch website has been
enhanced allowing the number of items monitored by the website to
be raised from about 1,650 in February 2014 to about 1,850 in March
2015. New categories like bread flour, pet food and frozen seafood
were added. The monthly average number of page views of the
website was more than 147,000, representing a threefold increase
since its launch in 2008.

Laundry Services

Laundry Services and Clothing Care Labelling

Some 300 complaints on laundry services were brought to the
Council each year for resolution. The laundry care industry attributed
disputes largely to incorrect or misleading care labels on garments.
A study was conducted on the common practices of local laundry
services and regulations overseas on care labelling.

A majority of the laundry shops solely provide customer service
and subcontract orders to laundry factories. Laundry shops broadly
define their services as dry cleaning, wet cleaning, and wash-n-fold
on the price list. However limited information is given as to what
exactly would be provided under each service. The laundry factory
screens each fabric and exercises its discretion on the mode of
cleaning service. Under the current practice, unnecessary disputes
may arise if the factory makes its own judgement to provide service
which deviates from what the customer has explicitly requested.

The Council suggested that some form of regulation on care
labelling, with reference to successful overseas experiences be
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considered. A mandatory care labelling standard was shown to be
effective in informing consumers and launderers of appropriate
cleaning methods applied to garments, thus extending the useful
life of a product, allowing a consumer to be fully informed about the
potential maintenance costs at the time of purchase, and keeping
down the level of consumer complaints related to garment care.

Textbooks
Textbook Price Survey

For many years, the Council has been conducting textbook price
survey. The result has been useful reference for stakeholders. The
average increase in textbook prices was 3.7% in 2014. It was lower
than the rate of increase of the composite Consumer Price Index (CPI)
of 4.4% (for the 12 months ended May 2014 over the corresponding
period of last year).

Out of the 586 commonly used textbooks surveyed, 568 had their
prices increased from 0.5% to 5.6%; 18 remained unchanged;
while none recorded price decrease. By subject, senior secondary
Chemistry, senior secondary Combined Science and junior
secondary Geography were among the top 10% textbooks at the
high end of price increase.

The same average price increase of 3.7% was recorded for both
primary and secondary school textbooks. The former rose 0.5% while
the latter dropped 0.1% from the previous year.

Textbook Expenditure Survey

The Council recorded an average increase of 0.6% compared with the
previous year on textbook expenditure, after surveying 51 secondary
schools across Hong Kong. The expenditure amounted to an average
of HK$2,405 for secondary students. Textbook expenditure for the
primary sector based on 54 primary schools surveyed rose 3.2% on
average, amounting to an average sum of HK$2,385 this year.

The survey was conducted with the help of the Education Bureau.
It showed that the rise in textbook expenditures in both primary
and secondary sectors was lower than the latest composite CPI of
4.1% in Hong Kong. The moderate increase in secondary textbook
expenditure was attributed to the fact that the number of required
textbooks was reduced because the number of electives which
students have to take dropped from three to two as indicated by
most secondary schools in the survey; the use of learning materials
prepared by schools became more common this year; the discount
offered by bookstores remained largely unchanged at 5% for the
secondary sector. For the primary sector, the discount offered in
many cases was reduced by 1% to 5%.

Textbook Revision Survey

A revised textbook will make the one in use obsolete necessitating
the purchase of the new revised edition, adding to the already
heavy burden of parents on textbook spending. On this premise,
the Council conducts the Textbook Revision Survey annually by
enlisting the support of professional education experts as panelists
to examine whether editorial changes made (including changes in
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content, sequence of chapters, and layout and design) as found in
the sampled revised textbooks are necessary for effective teaching
and learning.

The survey this year covered five sets of 13 volumes of senior
secondary class textbooks comprising Liberal Studies, Chinese
History, Chemistry and Business, Accounting and Financial Studies.
Survey result showed that out of the 13 volumes, only one volume
was judged to be necessary for revision, the proportion was the
lowest in five years. The remainders were, however, not considered
totally warranted in their revision.

Travel Services

Package Tour Consumer Experience

The Council collected opinions of 2,514 tour members upon their
return to the Hong Kong International Airport from package
tours abroad during the Chinese New Year. A similar survey was
conducted ten years ago. Overall, the quality of service remained
rather stable over the ten year period between 2004 and 2014, with
slight improvement in some areas. In particular, the incidence of tour
cancellation or change requiring tour members to switch to other
tours or change the departure date on the grounds of purportedly
insufficient enrolment or unavailability of plane seats had declined
from 5% to 3%. Also, fewer respondents (from 0.9% to 0.5%) reported
the demand for additional fees and charges by the tour operators
after payment of tour prices in part or in full.

Nearly 70% of the respondents duly paid the exact amount of service
charge recommended by the travel agents. 75% of them considered
the amount to be reasonable, while 7% of them thought otherwise.
They resented the compulsory nature as well as the high level of
charge set for tipping without regard to the quality of service of tour
escorts and guides. Other areas of unfavourable comments from
tour respondents included the time spent on shopping activities
being alleged as too much; optional programmes at additional fees
arranged during the tour; and meals lacking in variety, quantity and
quality.

The Council opined that travel agents should draw attention of tour
members to the voluntary nature of service charge which was set
at the upper limit and as a recommendation for reference only. It
should be up to the consumers to decide whether or not to tip or
how much to tip. Such practice would encourage an improvement in
the standard of service.
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Budget Airline Services

The growth in budget airline
services in recent years brought with
it an upsurge of consumer complaints
to the Council. Top on the list of
consumer dissatisfaction concerned price

disputes. Equally significant was the level of
consumer dissatisfaction concerning flight delay, cancellation and
service quality.

To enhance consumer awareness, the Council conducted a market
survey on the Hong Kong Low Cost Carrier (LCC) industry focusing
on airline service charge and liability based on ten LCCs which
together share around 90% of the total passenger traffic in the Hong
Kong LCC market. Result of the study showed that the business
proposition between LCCs and the traditional full service carriers
(FSCs) are vastly different in nature as LCCs adopt a service-by-item
pricing approach. Unlike FSCs, a LCC ticket covers only the flight
and carry-on baggage service. Other services such as checked-in
baggage and in-flight services including food and beverages and
entertainment facilities are deemed to be paid items.

In the event of flight delay, cancellation, damaged or missing
baggage, the Montreal Convention stipulates that under non-
extraordinary circumstances (such as technical faults) which are
within airline’s control, air carriers have the obligation to compensate
or render assistance to passengers. Although the findings showed
that while most LCCs were in compliance they had satisfied only the
minimum requirements under the international conventions.

Noting the distinct expectation gaps between the service level
of the LCCs and the demand from consumers, practical tips were
offered to consumers to consider before placing their orders. The
Council also urged the industry to improve their quality of customer
service and communication with passengers especially in changing
flight schedules.
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FOSTERING COMPETITION
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The Council undertakes research and study on various aspects of market
behaviour to advocate fair competition and ensure best practices in the marketplace.
Responsible trade practices and a level-playing field are conducive to ensuring better
prices, increased choices and higher quality of products and services, which are all

desired effects of consumer satisfaction and economic efficiency.

HE AR ST 2T 5 -

DUBGE P 3 B RAF B Ik - ATHEME T TN A I E g BT DL 2 i 8 B R & B
TERS ~ SE25 (288 432 » DR S i B 3 1 At TR 265 - 70 0 T 0 8 R T T B B A R 3 2

Toplcal Issues of Competition and
 Trade Practices

- During the year, the Council advised the

~ Government and the trade on various matters

=2 @)1 by way of indepth studies regarding competition

JOEIREEIEP)  and trade practices in sectors including electricity

7 and residential property markets, as well as
consultation submissions'.

Improving Regulation of Market

Guidelines on Competition Ordinance

The Council put forward its suggestion on the enforcement
guidelines of the Competition Ordinance with the emphasis on
a consumer welfare approach in interpreting the rules of the
Ordinance.

Reform for the Electricity Market

The Council released a report entitled Searching for New Directions
— A Study of Hong Kong Electricity Market in December 2014 which
recommended a progressive and holistic approach to review and
reform the electricity market in Hong Kong.

The study with help from experts of the Consumers International
specifically looked into the international experience of electricity
regulatory reform in major markets and its implications for
consumers. Locally, the Council engaged extensively stakeholder
groups including professional and industry associations, power
companies, environmental groups, academia as well as the
Government. Three major aspects in the electricity market, namely
regulation, competition and sustainability were examined.
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The report concluded that Hong Kong needs a more
holistic, transparent and fairer regulatory regime in order
to adopt to the new environmental policies for emission
deduction, and to be fair to consumers by having the two
power companies to share the business risks.

In order to mitigate tariff pressure in the coming years, the
Council also called for a regulatory framework that could enable a
meaningful public participation in designing the policies and put
much more vigorous focus on consumer welfare.

It was also observed that liberalisation in the generation market may
offer more benefits to consumers in the long run as a diversified fuel
mix and generation portfolio would support risk management in
aspects like fuel security and better price stability. In this regard, fair
access to networks would be critical for any reform in the market.

In connection with liberalising the market, the Council also proposed
that the Government should further explore the opportunity of
renewable energy and the introduction of small-scale gas generation
facilities for sustainable development in power generation.

The Council also raised the issue of fuel poverty to low-income
consumers, and proposed the formation of an Energy Commission
to tackle the issues raised in the report and ultimately to meet future
challenges posed by various objectives of the Government's energy
market reform policy.

Review on Sales of First-hand Residential Properties

The Council conducted an indepth study, entitled Study on the Sales
of First-hand Residential Properties — A Review of the Regulatory
Regime and Recommendations on the Way Forward, with a view to
finding out how prospective purchasers were treated in property
transactions, and the state of compliance by property developers
under the Residential Properties (First-hand Sales) Ordinance (the
Ordinance). A combination of survey, focus group meetings and field
visits were carried out to gather consumer opinions and assessment
on trade compliance.

The Council had identified some trade practice concerns that could
potentially give rise to the wrongful proliferation and dissemination
of market information on supply and demand, seriously undermining
the consumers' right to be informed.

While the Ordinance stipulates the minimum requirement on the
number of units to be included on a price list, it stopped short of
requiring all the units covered on the price list to be made available
for sale concurrently. Gray areas in the law might lend legitimacy
to undesirable trade practices of releasing property units in small
batches, and the potential to influence the supply situation and
encourage market speculation.

The study revealed that some consumers were dissatisfied that
the cooling-off period of five working days was too short, and a
forfeiture amount of five per cent of the purchase price upon

ﬂ failure to execute the sale and purchase agreement was too
)
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high. As observed from the field visits, there were cases where
prospective purchasers were under great pressure to make quick
purchase decision.

The study also found that while information given to consumers via
sales brochures and price lists was required to be adequate and
accurate under the Ordinance, the prospective purchasers might
find the information voluminous and confusing, and thus not user
friendly or convenient.

Based on the findings, the Council put forward a series of
recommendations for consideration by the Government, the
regulators and the trade with a view to promoting desirable trade
practices and enhancing consumer welfare.

Enhancing Information Transparency
Auto-Fuel Price Monitoring Analysis

In light of rising public outcry of alleged unfair pricing practices
by oil companies, the Council analysed data of international crude
oil and auto-fuel prices from 2013 to 2014, and found signs that
adjustments in auto fuel pricing were ‘quick to go up’ and 'slow to
come down”.

From the Council’s findings, it could not prove that oil companies
had ‘more going up’, though the data reflected that there were ‘less
coming down’ situations as the magnitude of pump price cut was
relatively small. In other words, oil companies' product cost margin
on auto-fuel was constantly increasing as the adjustment magnitude
of auto-fuel prices was relatively narrow compared to that of crude/
imported oil prices.

To better protect consumers' rights, the Council urged the
Government and the oil companies to enhance transparency and
make available more information, such as detailed data on oil import
prices, rental costs of gas stations and other operating costs to
enable the public to determine if adjustments in pump prices are
justified.

Launch of Mobile Phone Application amaee o

‘Diesel Price Calculator’

Commissioned by the Environment -

Bureau, the Council launched the e E
segn

mobile phone application 'Diesel
Price Calculator’ in February 2015 to
enhance auto diesel price competition
among oil companies and to help
consumers make their choice among
various kinds of discounts and
benefits offered by oil companies. 3 *
The new 'Diesel Price Calculator’ application
provides daily updates on prices and discounts on diesel
fuel together with information about auto-fuel filling sites

by different oil companies. It also serves as a one-stop interface
enabling consumers to keep track of payment records and previously
searched locations.
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Supply of Powdered Formula

The Council conducted an ad hoc survey concerning the supply and
price of infant formula before the Lunar New Year in 2015, one of the
peak seasons for shortage of powdered formula products.

The survey covered 18 districts and revealed continued shortage
in some districts despite improvement to the supply situation.
Powdered formula suppliers were urged to ensure an adequate
stable supply of the products in the market to forestall any incidence
of price hikes due to shortage.

The survey also showed that generally the prices of powdered
formula at drug stores were lower than those in chain stores.
But considerable price variances were found to exist among the
drugstores themselves.

The Council had been paying attention to the representations in
advertisements and promotional messages for powdered formula.
The Council welcomed the Government's proposal for regulatory
oversight of the powdered formula industry in respect of nutrition
and health claims made for their products (including infant and
follow-up formula as well as baby food) so that parents would not
be unduly influenced by formula product claims. The Council also
asserted that any such claims should be scientifically proven by a
credible authority to avoid customers being misled by exaggerated
or untruthful claims.

Strengthening Consumer Protection
Regulation of Private Healthcare Facilities

The Council supported in principle the proposals as set out in a
consultation document on Regulation of Private Healthcare Facilities
(PHFs), and highlighted the importance of the adoption of two-
tier complaints handling mechanism in both hospital and non-
hospital PHFs, having measures in place to review and oversee the
increment of service fees, the requirement on mandatory report of
sentinel event for ambulatory facilities providing high-risk medical
procedures, provision of recognized service packages for common
operations/treatments and the increase of proposed penalties.

Besides, the Council also recommended that medical organisations
and premises practising cosmetic/beauty services with risks involved
be regulated, and regulatory regime with respect to the operation
and quality management of medical laboratories be also introduced.

Regulation of Default Fund Arrangements of MPF
Schemes

The Council responded to a consultation paper entitled Providing
Better Investment Solutions for MPF Members issued by the Financial
Services and the Treasury Bureau and the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Authority (MPFA). The paper put forward the proposal of a
core fund to enhance the regulation of default fund arrangements of
MPF schemes.

The Council in principle supported the introduction of a
standardised, low-fee core fund as a new arrangement in the MPF

BRINFEIL I

AEE2016FRENFRINENZNHTRBIE
B IRERENEZRDHIEENTEEER

HAERERB 18R BRBE PHREMEH
AREBRE - BEBIME R RESEHABE
RAERFVHEERFRDHEERSNRE
BRRAREMBIIGERBIL

HAENBEN EREEPHNER—REBEHE
B EERECRANERERATLRA-

AETBEINHMEREREEEERAEAN
B FA - AGEA BN ERIDERER BN
"BEHER (BRER - BRABRRYREFE
RIRTEHREY NEBRNBRRER  LURE
REAZEFTERNEBTLE KR T
FRBBEMAIREVERIIZEMTEHE
BREHABHEANZLE LEREEERXS
RAEMNBHERE -

hseHEE R
IWEBBERIBRE

AGEA X TR BEMIERE R
HIMES TREITFRANEEES 12H
LIFEE:: S EMERRIEEREENHSE
%%$§%ﬁﬁ%§%ﬁﬁ?&iﬁmfﬁ%%ﬂ FERR T

BB BRI E IR B EIE
%Kml&’f’fﬁ’]ﬂ“%%%% FER RS ERE
FRFNABEERE EAHEERERNER

BRERETREN BRELZEERBEIER
FH/BFRUEBTBRBEE LURERSER

EBIRIETR -

R AEREREFHLER “*%&f&ﬂ =0
XRRBNBEEREEREMEIRE BELR
FTMEEL RBEE R ESIARE %UF

BIREIRRETLHRE

reERMREBREBRERGMEAEEFE
EER(BEER)MERMER RBESKE
REFEREHNR ) MBAXMFFHORE - 5
NHRBRIEROESURAHBRESER
HEeRFMRE -

AERALZFHSIAT-—RERENZLES
ERBREEF R =5k LUEARRRE S8



system to facilitate comparison among funds by MPF scheme
members and induce price competition, thereby lower the fees in
the long term.

With regard to transitional arrangements, the Council considered the
opt-out arrangement not acceptable for the automatic transfer of the
accrued benefits to the new core fund, and suggested that the existing
scheme members be deemed to remain in the same type of fund unless
the members had indicated a change of their investment choice.

Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes (Amendment) Bill 2014

In its submission to the Legislative Council Bills Committee, the
Council supported in general the proposals under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes (Amendment) Bill, and highlighted the
importance of strengthening consumer protection in the areas of
phased withdrawal of accrued benefits and the cost to consumers,
arrangement for early withdrawal of accrued benefits due to terminal
illness and initiatives to reduce MPF fees.

Promoting Good Business Practices
Code of Practices of the Laundry Industry

In encouraging business and professional associations to establish
codes of practices for enhancing service quality and consumer
protection, the Council collaborated with

the Laundry Association of Hong Kong in the ——————
development of a Code of Practices of the
Laundry Industry.

A draft code was released in March
2015 to collect views from different
stakeholders. The code was officially
published in July 2015.

Key performance indicators such as those
regarding the establishment of a complaints
review committee, wide adoption of the code
and periodic review were also set out.

Review of Code of Banking Practice

The Council gave comments on a draft revised Code of Banking
Practice by the Hong Kong Association of Banks.

The Council was pleased to note that some of its suggestions
were taken on board including the inclusion of a clear definition
on the coverage of the types of financial services and institutions
in the draft code; the requirement of customers’ consent before
introduction of products/services which involve potential risk of
financial loss; and the revision of the provisions in the code relating
to the collection, use, holding and erasure of customer information.

RERFHILE FRERHEF KMREMRE
BEESER-

BRAERE AR/ ERERABDER
AL ES T H  BREEKS  —RAAUERX
Y YRR B E A KPR ERERERE
ERFREEREESA -

2014%F CGafltAIRESTEISED R
EX)
ERRFEREEEEGNERF ARAK
ZF (RHM ARSI (BT BHAER) T
i PRBERARS AL L ERENEE
M B BRI R R 8 R AT R OBL A B
B ERSRARPERREEESNRS MR
TR S M E R

EERFEHFE
(RREEBEHTR)

RS R RS EEEHTEHT  LURA R
BHERMAYHEENRE  AEREEER
HRERER)ARARR (A REETES
AI) (B3P R) -

EXETEHERN2015E38 %M LK
EXANBERTESNENEERE R
fE-BEBTRIN2015E 7B EREIR -

AGFHE BT EEX
meHTIEREE 8
I ET T M B R PR ST

— BFBEEEEY T%

v BERATAREH

. BETXHTAMNR

BRBTIER

(IRITEETR) 5T
AGREERITAGH B0 (RTEETR)
SERUER

AEMEERRTASEETAREEEE
AEHHIRR - Bla - FRIDSARBAKE
BANBRBEFHBWMMNER TRTTHA
RABBEFPRR AAREFHEESREEKL
ERARBRNERKLRE KB EREFERN
W A R R MR RSB R -



W

ADVANCING LEGAL PROTECTION FOR CONSUMEli S
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The Council advances legal protection for consumers by submitting views
to the Government and other relevant bodies regarding legal developments,
regulatory regimes and codes that may affect the position and welfare of
consumers. Consumers are better protected if their rights are stipulated in

law or codes of practice.
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Submissions on Legal Protection

During the year, the Council made five submissions
from the perspective of consumer legal protection
on matters relating to third parties’ rights under
contract law, land titles system, private columbaria
and stored value facilities. The Council also
commented on the draft code of practice for holder

of wholesale poisons licence and draft code of conduct

for holder of certificate of registration as an importer and
exporter of pharmaceutical products.

Submission on the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Bill

Under the Bill, a third party will only be entitled to enforce a benefit
conferred on him under a contract in very limited circumstances.
In most of the consumer transactions, it is likely that the intention
to confer benefit on a third party may not be manifested and the
intended beneficiary may not be identified in the contracts.

The Council proposed that the two-limb test of enforceability
provided in s.4 of the Bill should be relaxed specifically for consumer
third party to the effect that a consumer third party may enforce a
contract when he justifiably and reasonably relies on it or when it
actually confers a benefit on him.

Consultation on Draft Code of Practice for Holder of
Wholesale Poisons Licence and Draft Code of Practice
for Holder of Certificate of Registration as an Importer
and Exporter of Pharmaceutical Products

In a submission to the Department of Health, the Council was
supportive of the objectives of the Draft Codes to improve the
standards for distribution activities of pharmaceutical products
and ultimately enhance the safety and reliability of pharmaceutical
products.
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To better achieve the objectives, the Council
submitted that the Draft Codes should offer
concrete measures to be taken by the
licence or certificate holders to prevent
contamination of pharmaceutical products /|
and mixing up of different products. The ||
Council also suggested that the licence or
certificate holders should provide guidance
and instructions on proper storage of
pharmaceutical products through the product
label, package and written instructions,
enabling consumers to properly store and use the
pharmaceuticals. In addition, the Council called for
a prudent review by the licence or certificate holders
before destruction of any records. The Pharmacy and
Poisons Board is also urged to consider whether a longer period of
time for keeping records and documentation should be imposed to
cater for pharmaceuticals with product life span of over two years.

Latest Proposal for the Implementation of the Land
Titles Ordinance - Rectification and Indemnity Issues &
Indeterminate Ownership Registers

In response to the Land Registry’s latest proposal regarding
the implementation of the Land Titles Ordinance, the Council
reiterated the importance of ensuring that the public have correct
understanding of all key features, application and implementation of
the Ordinance, such as the scope, applicability and limitation of the
Indemnity Fund.

The Council acknowledged that screening of registers for each
existing property to identify indeterminate ownership cases for
the purpose of implementing the proposed Two-stage Conversion
Mechanism would be both important and challenging. The
Council suggested that all existing properties should undergo
primary conversion at the same time after completion of the entire
screening process in order to enhance clarity and certainty to the
general public. Further and concurrently, title registration can
be implemented on new land as the problem of indeterminate
ownership would not arise in the case of new land, enabling the
public to enjoy the benefit of the new title registration system earlier.

Submission on Private Columbaria Bill

The Council supported the proposed establishment of a licensing
regime to regulate private columbaria and introduction of detailed
requirements on their operation, sale of interment rights and
ash disposal procedure. At the same time, we also raised various
concerns on the potential risks to consumers in purchasing the right
to inter ashes in private columbaria.

In particular, the Council called for a mandatory cooling-off period
of 21 working days in contracts of sale of interment rights in view of
the long-term commitment and high contract value usually involved.
To deter misleading sale tactics of unscrupulous sales agents for
interment rights, the Council suggested that licensed columbaria
operators should be obligated to take reasonable care and diligence
to ensure that their agents comply with all the applicable law and act
in a fair and honest manner. The Council further proposed a ban on
services bundling and called on the Bills Committee to consider the
establishment of a compensation fund.
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Submission on Clearing and Settlement Systems 2015 E i E R RINRIRUEENIRHIE R

(Amendment) Bill 2015 SERE

The Council submitted its views to the Bills Committee of the AenAEEAEESNER(EBSVFER ML

Legislative Council on the issues relating to stored value facilities e RREe B R AeR EEBIETE

(SVF). Whilst supporting the establishment of a mandatory licensing 3B SRSV 37 %) 55 0 1 AT B I A
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involving substantial amounts of money, for
enhancement of consumer protection. - AETREZE SVFRITANER
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The Council also submitted that the
licensing criteria and conditions for SVF
issuers should ensure a sufficient level

of consumer protection and fairness
in the contract between the SVF
issuers and the SVF users. In particular,
users should be able to redeem the
outstanding stored value without unfair
barriers and gain access to their payment/
transaction records in a cost efficient manner.




DISSEMINATING CONSUMER INFORMATION
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The Council informs and guides consumers
about their rights through the communication of information by
means of a diversity of media tools and channels. Effective information
dissemination will not only empower consumers to be vigilant against
undesirable trade practices and alert to unsafe goods and substandard services, but also
enable them to make wise choices and act responsibly.
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Promoting Consumer Welfare through
Anniversary Commemorative Activities

During the year, the Council launched a series of publicity activities
commemorating its 40" anniversary of service to promote consumer
welfare. The activities were organised to fully reflect the ever
readiness of the Council to move forward with the consumer public
and explore new dimension of consumer protection.

40" Anniversary Cocktail Reception

The commemoration of the 40" Anniversary
was officially kicked off with a cocktail
reception held on 7 April. With the
Chief Executive Mr LEUNG Chun-
ying as the Guest of Honour and

with the presence of nearly 500
distinguished guests including
high-ranking officials, business
representatives, former Council
Chairpersons and Chief
Executives, delegates of
consumer bodies from Macau,
Mainland China and Taipei, the
occasion was a rare show of
support bearing witness to four
decades of successful endeavours
in consumer betterment.

A highlight of the event was a speech delivered

by the Council’s Chairman Prof. WONG Yuk-shan

under the anniversary theme Enlighten-Collaborate-Innovate during
which he shared and reviewed with the audience the 40 years of
dedicated work and achievement of the Council together with the
future directions in consumer protection.
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Chief Executive Mr LEUNG Chun-ying happily
receiving a reproduction front cover of CHOICE
magazine featuring him as the cover celebrity in
1987 as a souvenir gift.
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Cross-strait Symposium on Consumer Protection

The first-ever cross-strait symposium on consumer protection,
organised by the Council in association with the Macao SAR
Government Consumer Council, was held from 7 to 9 April
consecutively in Hong Kong and Macau. The three-day symposium
entitled Opportunity and Challenge on Consumer Protection
offered a valuable opportunity for consumer leaders and advocates
from Hong Kong, Macau, Mainland China and Taipei, to meet and
exchange experience and views on topics regarding consumer
legal protection, online purchase, privacy protection and consumer
education for the new generation of consumers.

The symposium was one of the key events to mark the Council’s 40"
Anniversary. It drew an assembly of some 100 delegates, and also
attracted wide media attention. A total of 23 local reporters and six
reporters from the Mainland attended the event.

Metropolitan Consumers TV Features I‘ .

The Council also launched a series of special TV
features entitled Metropolitan Consumers as one
of the major commemorative activities for the
40" Anniversary. Sponsored by the Council and
produced by Radio Television Hong Kong

(RTHK), the series explored issues relating

to consumer protection based on daily life
cases, and the Council's years of research
and studies and relevant legislation. I

The TV features comprised five episodes ||
covering topics of consumption in the areas

of clothing, food, housing, transportation
and beauty. The audience were reminded
of oversights on the part of consumers
commonly found in making transactions and the
importance of establishing good spending habits.

It also aimed to convey the messages about a new 4‘& i

and trendy way of spending based on the principle Bl"
of rational spending and sustainable consumption.

Metropolitan Consumers was broadcast on TVB Jade, RTHK TV
31 and the RTHK website for five consecutive Tuesdays starting in
November. In addition, Phoenix Satellite Television later acquired
the broadcasting right from RTHK and the programme was shown to
audience in Mainland China.

s CHOICE Magazine

. The Council's monthly magazine,
. CHOICE, is widely recognised as
an independent and impartial
platform for consumers to
| access credible, reliable and
| useful information and advice on
all matters of interest to them.
It features the latest reports on
tests, surveys and indepth studies
on a wide range of consumer goods
and services.
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To uphold the principles of independence and impartiality in
evaluating consumer goods and services, the Council does not
accept any offer of advertisement to be published in or donation for
CHOICE.

The print edition of CHOICE is available through both subscription
and sales via retail outlets including newsstands, convenience
stores, supermarkets and bookshops across the territory. The overall
combined sales averaged 20,982 copies per issue in 2014-15, split
evenly between subscription and retail sales. Over 62,000 downloads
of online reports and articles were recorded during the year under
review, which represented an 11% increase compared with the
previous year.

The July issue (#453) featuring, among others, the test report
concerning the efficacy of anti-wrinkle face creams in wrinkle
reduction and skin hydration, was the top selling issue of the year as
the first print of 26,350 copies were sold out within a few days, and
had to be followed by a reprint of 4,000 copies to meet the demand.

At the Hong Kong Book Fair held in July 2014, the magazine was
very well received by visitors with the number of new subscriptions
acquired during the fair reaching over 2,100, setting a new record
since the Council joined the book fair in 2007.

Empower Consumer through Media

The Council maintains close contact with the mass media on
all matters of consumer interest, which contributes
significantly to the fulfillment of the Council’s

statutory duty to disseminate consumer
information to the public.

The Council is responsive to media
enquiries and makes every endeavour
to provide relevant information
at their requests. The media has

a vital role to play in helping
the Council convey messages
or comments on matters of
consumer concerns through
interviews on various programmes;
and on a regular basis through the
press conferences for the release of
CHOICE, and the media interviews
that follow.

During the year under review, more than
160 press releases and statements were
issued, covering topics published in CHOICE
magazine, and the Council’s responses and positions
concerning significant consumer issues.

The Council’s Chief Executive wrote a bi-weekly column entitled
SHEH1E published in online am730. She had contributed a total of
25 articles since its debut on 11 April.
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Enhancing Communication through Internet

The Council’s official website (www.consumer.org.hk) provides a
wide range of information for access by consumers, with barrier-free
features for visually and hearing impaired users. Information posted
on the website includes press release, information on product recalls
and alerts, Government submissions and shopping tips. Consumers
can also lodge complaints via the website or compare prices of over
1,850 grocery items sold in supermarkets which are updated daily for
consumers’ reference. More than 858,000 unique visitors browsed
the website, with over 1.8 million visits and 6.8 million pageviews
during the year.

During the year, a taskforce was established to review and
revamp the website with the objectives to enhance user interface,
information accessibility and interactivity. It was hoped that the
online platform could be fully utilised for engaging customers so
that not only information could be disseminated but also customer
feedbacks, opinions and suggestions could be collected through
online channels. Work is at an advanced stage to launch the new
website shortly in 2015.

Publicity on Topical Issues

The Council released three important reports during the year
including Study on the Sales of First-hand Residential Properties — A
Review of the Regulatory Regime and Recommendations on the Way
Forward in November 2014, Searching for New Directions — A Study
of Hong Kong Electricity Market in December 2014 and Auto-fuel
Price Monitoring Analysis in February 2015.

Press conferences and media briefings were held to publicise the
results, drawing extensive media coverage and public attention.
There were altogether 146 printed news reports, 140 online news
and 25 radio / TV news coverage. The news also aroused heated
discussion on the social media platforms.
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Raising Public Awareness Through News

Highlights of this year included the Consumer Rights Reporting
Awards and the Top Ten Consumer News, organised in collaboration
with the news industry to encourage reporting on consumer issues
with a view to promoting consumer protection and public awareness
of consumer rights.

The Consumer Rights Reporting Awards

The 14" Consumer Rights Reporting Awards was organised by the
Council in association with the Hong Kong Journalists Association
and the Hong Kong Press Photographers Association, with the
objective to encourage and award excellence in reporting of
consumer rights protection.

The Council received a total of 247 entries to the Awards under seven
categories: print news, print features, television news, television
features, radio news, radio features and press photography.

The winning entries highlighted some of the hot topics that were
of public concern during the year, such as the sales practices and
regulation of medical beauty services and telecommunications
services, the enforcement of the amended Trade Descriptions
Ordinance and 'sky-high’ powdered formula'.

Top Ten Consumer News (Year of the Horse)

The Top Ten Consumer News organised by the Consumer Council
jointly with Cable TV News, Radio Television Hong Kong and
Hong Kong Economic Times and Sky Post was in its 11" year, which
attracted a total of 2,858 voters participating in this annual event.

Members of the public were invited to select and vote for the top
ten consumer news out of a list of 20, which in their view were of the
utmost importance to consumers in Hong Kong during the year . The
top two voted news, both drew over 2,600 votes, were in relation to
food safety, reflecting the general public’'s main concern. Among
the top ten news, two of them stemmed from the Council’s study
reports on the sales of First-hand Residential Properties and on the
discrepancy in the labelling of price in supermarket chain outlets”.
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EMPOWERING CONSUMERS THROUGH EDUCATION
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The Council, in addition to media
programmes, empowers consumers also by means of education
programmes at the school and community level, which allows consumers
and social groups to acquire the necessary skills and knowledge in rational
consumption, enabling them to think and act as responsible consumers.
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Education Programmes and Activities

During the year, a wide range of education programmes and
activities, comprising 220 educational talks, workshops and
seminars, were organised and conducted for various target
groups, including youth, elderly and new immigrants, as well as
other interested parties such as teachers and the vulnerable.
These activities covered a wide range of topics encompassing
consumer rights and responsibilities, consumer protection laws,
sustainable consumption and issues concerning subscription of
telecommunications services and product safety.

Enhancing Youth Awareness in Consumer Rights
The Consumer Culture Study Award

In collaboration with the Education Bureau, the 16™ Consumer
Culture Study Award (CCSA) took place during the year. The CCSA
is one of the largest project-based learning platforms for local
secondary school students. Participants were asked to select a topic
on local consumer culture for study and then submit a report.

The annual event this year drew a total of 1,121 teams from 104
secondary schools”. Over 2,500 teachers and students attended
introductory talks organised by the Council, in which they were
guided to contemplate a wide array of consumer issues, and
learned methods needed to conduct cultural studies. It was through
these talks and the subsequent active engagement of students in
conducting the study that their understanding and awareness of
consumer issues were enhanced and analytical ability strengthened.

Further, 133 workshops and consultation sessions covering over
30 thematic topics were conducted for over 7,800 teachers and
students as an extension activity of the Award. These activities
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were held to stimulate creativity and interest in a variety of issues
including consumers’ responsibility and their relationship with the
environment. Council staff also shared with the participants the
concepts and skills in conducting cultural studies.

Altogether, School Workshop Days were held in 27 schools to give
support to and boost the learning initiative of the participants. On
a School Workshop Day, the Council would conduct four to five
different workshops for as many as 200 students in a single session,
exposing them to different experiences and training.

Two Consultation Days with four sessions as well as 41 advisory
and consultation sessions in schools were held during the year as
a support initiative for teachers and students to help improve their
project ideas and skills.

In order to sustain participants’ interest in consumer culture studies,
interest groups on the subject were established in four local schools,
each with 10-15 members, with the assistance of the Council’s
Consumer Education Division as a pilot scheme. Monthly training
talks and workshops were conducted by Council staff while sharing
sessions were held by experienced peer mentors.

The Award was well received by schools as nearly 75% of participating
schools had joined the event for two or more consecutive years. The
rate of participating teams completing the study was a high 99%.

Equally significant, since its inception, the Award had generated
a fruitful collection of over 11,900 study reports based on first-
hand data collected by students, and in turn, has helped enrich the
archives of studies on local consumer culture as well as the pool of
teaching resources.

Programmes on the amended Trade Descriptions
Ordinance

To enhance the understanding amongst young people of the
amended Trade Descriptions Ordinance, a series of educational talks
and seminars were held. A total of 44 education programmes relating
to the legislation were delivered to tertiary institutions, secondary
schools as well as community and district groups during the year.

Youth Development Service Scheme

The Youth Development Service Scheme was set up to provide
learning opportunities for young people through taking part in
consumer education projects. In the scheme, youth volunteers were
provided with comprehensive training and practical opportunities
while participating in the running of various events and projects
undertaken by the Council’s Consumer Education Division.
They were also enlisted to give support to some independent
tasks including working on community projects or production of
educational materials.

During the year, over 50 students from secondary schools and
undergraduates from universities participated in the scheme.
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Training of Tertiary Students

During the year, the Council continued to provide internship and
summer job training opportunities for 12 students from various local
and Mainland universities, including the Hong Kong Institute of
Education, the Hong Kong Polytechnic University, Hong Kong Shue
Yan University and Shantou University. Full training programmes
were offered to students so that they could acquire practical on-the-
job experience by working in different departments which could be
beneficial to their career development in the future.

Education Programmes for Vulnerable Groups
Consumer Education for Senior Citizens

A total of 45 education programmes targeting senior citizens were
held in collaboration with social and community service organisations
during the year. They were tailored to meet the needs of senior
citizens taking into account their specific mode of consumption and
vulnerability to unfair trade practices.

The programmes focused mainly on health and safety concerns in
the purchase and use of goods and services popular in this particular
cohort of consumers. These included health food and equipment,
household appliances and dried seafood. Precautions against
consumer traps was one of the hot topical subjects.

Consumer Education for New Arrivals and
Disadvantaged

Vulnerability of certain social groups, such as new arrivals and
the disabled, to risks posed by unfair trade practices remained
a constant concern of the Council. Education programmes were
specifically designed for such groups.
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In collaboration with Christian Action and International Social
Service (Hong Kong Branch), the Council delivered six educational
programmes during the year to new arrivals from Mainland China.

A total of nine specially designed educational programmes were also
delivered to disadvantaged groups such as the hearing impaired and
students with mental disabilities or special educational needs.

Train the Trainers
Training Programmes for Teachers

The Government's recent curriculum reform responded favourably
to the Council's call for incorporating consumer education into
the school curriculum. The Council had also been invited to
contribute towards the design of new curricula regarding the key
learning areas of Technology Education and Personal, Social and
Humanity Education. As a result, consumer education concepts were
incorporated effectively into school learning.

To meet with the demand of teachers for more exposure to and
understanding of current consumer issues encountered in their
teaching, the Council has been providing training programmes to
teachers.

During the year, two seminars on the amended Trade Descriptions
Ordinance, jointly organised by the Council with the Education
Bureau, were held in June and October 2014 for teachers of
Economics and Business related subjects. A separate teaching
sharing session cum workshop demonstration was also organised for
advisory teachers of the CCSA.
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Staff Training for School Teachers

During the year, staff development programmes were conducted for
teachers of two secondary schools. Sharing and advisory sessions
were also held for school teachers to guide students in consumer
cultural studies and project learning programmes.

Staff Exchange Activities with Consumer Protection
Bodies

Training and experience sharing sessions were also provided to our
counterparts from consumer protection bodies from Mainland China
and Macau.

40™ Anniversary Activities
4 x 10 Comic Exhibition

To celebrate the 40" Anniversary of the Council, a roving comic
exhibition was organised and exhibited in three different locations
in Hong Kong from January to March 2015. The exhibition depicted
the changes over the past decades of the diverse consumption
situations confronted by local consumers in the eyes of renowned
comic artists.

The Exhibition displayed comic works of ten eminent comic artists,
including such classics as Old Master Q, Miss 13 Dots, Din-Dong,
and newly created stories from DOE Sum, Craig AU YEUNG, Siu
Hak, Yeung Hok-tak, Big Soil, WONG Chiu-tat, and Tina KO. Each of
the artists contributed four comic stories portraying the attitudes,
understanding and values of the characters regarding consumption
in a humorous, ironic and thought-provoking manner.

The comics were displayed together with corresponding echoes in
words from ten renowned cultural critics and 22 young winners of
the Consumer Culture Study Award. These echoes provided further
inspiring insights and interpretations as well as allowing visitors
a much broader perspective to ponder over the consumer issues
depicted.
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Exhibition visitors were also
invited to respond to the comics
in writing. Over 2,200 entries
were received. Selected entries
were then displayed in the
subsequent stops as well as on
the designated Facebook page.

The tour attracted over 87,000
visitors in total. 12 guided tours
were arranged for local schools and
organisations for secondary school
teachers and students, third age persons,
elderly and visually challenged persons'.

Hong Kong Mobile Film Festival

The Council sponsored the Best Thematic Micro-film
Award - Consumption is a matter of..., in the Mobile Film
Production Contest 2014 of the 8" Hong Kong Mobile
Film Festival, which was organised by the Hong Kong
Wireless Technology Industry Association. Entries were
invited, in the form of micro-films, to encourage greater
awareness of the consumer situations in Hong Kong.
45 entries were received for the sponsored competition
category.

Four production forum and workshops were held by the
Council in partnership with the Festival organiser to stimulate
participants’ creativity and interest in consumer issues as well as
production skills".

Educational Resources and Materials

To commemorate the 15" Anniversary of the Consumer Culture
Study Award and as one of the Council's 40" Anniversary Activities, a
collection of the previous 15 years’ major winning project reports of
the Award was produced. 3,000 copies of the DVD were distributed
to all secondary schools providing teachers an important and
substantial reference in developing and conducting school consumer
education or project learning courses.

A compilation of project reports and presentation videos from the
previous Third Age Persons Consumer Culture Study Award was also
produced to assist the social service sector to engage senior citizens
in the understanding and analysis of the local consumer culture.

4x10 Comic Exhibition was one of the major
events held in commemoration of the 40"
anniversary of the Consumer Council.
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See Appendix 14 for the list of participating comic artists and
cultural critics of the 4x10 Comic Exhibition.
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See Appendix 15 for the list of winners of the Best
Thematic Micro-film Award —"Consumption is a matter
of..." in the Mobile Film Production Contest 2014 of the
8th Hong Kong Mobile Film Festival.
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FORGING CLOSER COLLABORATION FOR
CONSUMER PROTECTION

Bl LA BREAE 1 4% Bt 1 28 HE 4

The Council is in constant liaison
and close collaboration with consumer protection
agencies, community groups, regulators, Government agencies,
professional bodies, either locally or overseas at regional and
international levels, to promote consumer protection.
R Gr i
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Local Collaboration

The Council maintains close liaison with the Commerce and Economic
Development Bureau, which oversees the policy on consumer
protection. The Council also works with other Government agencies
and statutory bodies to tender advice on matters of consumer
interest, such as policies and legislation regarding competition,
trade practices, financial services, insurance services, public health,
telecommunications, food and product safety and residential property.

Members and staff of the Council sit on more than 50 different
public advisory committees, including the Competition Commission,
Department of Health — Pharmacy and Poisons (Listed Sellers of
Poisons) Committee, Estate Agents Authority, Food and Health
Bureau — Expert Committee on Food Safety, and Hong Kong
Monetary Authority — Banking Consumer Education Taskforce'.

Cross-Strait Collaboration

In April 2014, the first Cross-strait Symposium
on Consumer Protection, organised by the
Council in association with the Macao |
SAR Government Consumer Council, was |
held in Hong Kong and subsequently in | attended
Macau. Some 100 delegates of consumer | CROSS-STRAIT /
bodies from Hong Kong, Macau, Taipei /
and the Mainland including representatives
from 28 provinces / cities attended the
symposium. Through experience sharing and
knowledge exchange on topics such as legal protection, cross-
border consumption and personal data protection legislation, the
symposium gave insights to consumer bodies across the straits in
planning and leading the way forward.

X

During the year, the Council also actively took part in events held by
its counterparts across the straits such as the cross-strait seminar on
consumer protection law organised by the Macao SAR Government
Consumer Council and the seminar for statutory bodies in Hong
Kong organised by the Tsinghua University in Shenzhen.
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16 See Appendix 16 for the list of external committees attended by Council members and staff.
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The first-ever Cross-strait Symposium on Consumer
Protection was organised in Hong Kong and Macau.

F—E "MmFOMERBRERRE, REBIDRMRT -

The Council continued to maintain a close RiEHW
connection with consumer bodies on the
Mainland. More than 220 delegates from ten
Mainland consumer and related organisations
visited the Council during the year. Valuable
views and experience were exchanged.

Regional and International
Collaboration

The Council is an Executive and Council member of the
Consumers International (Cl) which is a federation of consumer
organisations comprising 250 members from 120 countries and
territories, with a mission to support and strengthen member
organisations and the consumer movement in general while also
representing consumer interests at global and regional levels.

In addition to its membership in Cl's Executive and Council
Committee meetings, the Council was also invited by Cl to become
member of the Governance Reform Steering Group to take part in
governance structural review and development so as to enhance the
overall efficiency of Cl.

In response to the theme of Cl's World Consumer Rights Day —
Consumers Rights to Healthy Food and WHO recommendation on
dietary intakes of free sugars by children, the Council and the Centre
for Food Safety jointly conducted a test on children’s meals. Research
results were released on 16 March 2015. It showed that much to the
concerns of parents, children’s meal sets served in many restaurant
chains were found to be high in fat, sugar or sodium contents.

As a member of the International Consumer Research & Testing
(ICRT), the Council collaborated with other members and helped
initiate ideas for joint testing. The joint tests and studies organised
by the ICRT and published in CHOICE during the year covered some
22 types of products, including for example anti-wrinkle face creams,
baby pushchairs, fitness tracker wristbands, soccer balls and tablet
PCs. The Council also participated in/published ICRT's surveys on
manufacturers’ corporate social responsibility covering products
such as coffee beans, soccer balls and tablet PCs.

In September, the Council paid a courtesy visit to ICRT in England to
discuss strategic direction and co-operation with key ICRT partners.
In the same month, representative was also sent to attend ICRT's
Main Meeting held in Montreal, Canada.

The Council also showed support to events organised on a regional/
international level so as to leverage the opportunities to strengthen
ties and exchange. In April, the Council’s representative took part in
the Consumers International Asia Pacific Regional Meeting held in
Thailand. It also took part in the World Economic Forum in Tianjin in
September, an international conference joined by 1,900 participants
from 90 countries around the world.
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COMMENDATIONS AND COMPLIMENTS
et B

Over the years, the Council and its staff have won recognition for dedicated
service to the community and received numerous compliments and letters
of appreciation from consumers.
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Deputy Chief Executive Mr Simon CHUI receiving the award at the Web
Accessibility Recognition Scheme Awards Presentation Ceremony.
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Gold Award for SR AELES R

Barrier Free Website  wzessspseitmunmenmms
The Council won recognition for BeFohREdedtr KAe@g201 248 A4H
its barrier-free website specially BB MNEREERNEAERE  SBRIE
catered for users with special EATETEReERYEET

needs. In support of an inclusive

society, the Council incorporated e s .
, PR r=| F3E I R %@\Eﬁuu/\'—f \/’t’“i
barrier-free features into its website MU B BB A MM R BRAZ R SR

© K B & A v pk r Rz TEY 4[] =l =
since 2012 with the aim of facilitating SREEOMM2014 T EERPEZTE

. . f 2 A A S
equal access for users with special needs. MEmRERE-

The website received the Gold Award at the 2014 Web Accessibility
Recognition Scheme Awards for attaining the highest criteria in
terms of barrier-free accessibility. The awards were co-organised

by the Office of the Government Chief Information Officer
and the Equal Opportunities Commission.
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The Ombudsman's Awards 2014

Ms Ella LAU, Senior Complaints & Advice Officer,
was presented with the Ombudsman’s Awards 2014
in appreciation of her exemplary performance in

customer service and complaint handling.
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Words of Thanks ek 3 R

During the year, Council staff received letters of appreciation from RETERNEER SE RSB EELFR
consumers, who had sought redress by means of lodging complaints T B E IR S T I A B o

or filing claims with the Consumer Legal Action Fund.

W Id lik _ hank ! bers of th HAROLBHTREBFEE  FRELL R B
e would like to express our sincere thanks to the members of the MEXER —EALBERELNRELEE

public for placing their trust in our service, and a team of professional -
staff who served consumers with genuine care and by listening AR
patiently and carefully.

TANERETSR  ARBIRT REE SHHESRERNEREE ARTRER BB
ARBE NBERERNRBP OB LEE - RS HAR  BRATREMRERK
HEMEE WESRE R EFNAREREABIRREKEZE - EEBEBESR  SAMEH
PRIBEEE R R E/ -

BEER BRHEENRELENERER - RFTENBHER RS 20 RNEES
HHBTY ABBEL FEAR BERER BREEL !,

"I would like to express my heartfelt appreciation to the Consumer Council,
especially the case officer for the timely and meticulous follow up and efforts on
handling my complaint case.

| am very impressed by the dedication, efficiency and the high quality of his works.
He showed serious and mature attitude in handling my case. He also provided
valuable advice and updates to me patiently.

Through this case, | witness and treasure the important role and mission of the
Consumer Council in helping the consumers in Hong Kong. Look forward to seeing
the continuous growth of the Consumer Council. Thanks again for the big help!”
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"The case was eventually settled in a fairer and more amicable fashion.

Without the Council’s help to intervene for the rights of consumer, | feel that we
would not have been given the same equal voice in business transactions, no
matter how small or how big the unfair treatment is.

Once again, thank you!”
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CONSUMER COUNCIL
FORMER CHAIRPERSONS AND VICE-CHAIRPERSONS
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Year {5 Former Chairpersons B JEEE

1974 - 04 - 1975- 03 Sir KAN Yuet-keung, CBE, JP f&1its2 B+ CBE > A #ft

1975-04 - 1980 - 03 Dr LO Kwee-seong, OBE, CBE, JP Z& =181 > OBE ' CBE ' KFEf#+

1980 - 04 - 1984 -10 Dr Gallant HO Yiu-tai, JP {A¥Bi 1 AF i+

1984-10 - 1988 - 10 Mrs Selina CHOW LIANG Shuk-yee, GBS, JP ARGt S LKFEE  KFfH+
198810 - 199110 Mr Martin LEE Chu-ming, SC, JP Z= 1 88 B R AFRAD - A4+

1991-10 - 199710 Prof. Edward CHEN Kwan-yiu, GBS, JP [IFRHIT @ KF2F » AFMLT
199710 - 1999 - 07 The Hon. Anna WU Hung-yuk, GBS, JP tH{l EZ & € KFEE AT+

1999 - 09 - 2005 - 09 Prof. Andrew CHAN Chi-fai, SBS, JP BRSIEH % SREFE2E KM+

2005 - 09 - 2007 - 06 Prof. The Hon. K. C. CHAN, SBS, JP BREU&HIR  IREF 2 E - AT+

2007 - 07 - 2012- 06 Prof. The Hon. Anthony CHEUNG Bing-leung, GBS, JP SRR #%  SXFEF » AT+

Year F13 Former Vice-Chairpersons FE[EEIEfE

1987 - 04 - 1989 - 03 Mr TANG Kwai-nang, JP BFERESLAE » AFHAL

1989 - 04 - 199110 Prof. Edward CHEN Kwan-yiu, GBS,JP BRI - SR ES APt
1991-10 - 1993-10 Mr Justein WONG Chun, BBS, JP E25e4  REFIZE - AT+
199310 - 199710 The Hon. Anna WU Hung-yuk, GBS, JP #il £ & @KF 2T AFMt
1997-10 - 2001 - 10 Dr John HO Dit-sang fAI#k 4 8+

2001-10- 200710 Mr Larry KWOK Lam-kwong, BBS, JP SBIMEE/REN  SHLFIE2E AT HHL

2007-10-2013-10 Mr Ambrose HO, SBS, SC, JP (i s E R AR SREF 25 KL
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MEMBERSHIP OF THE CONSUMER COUNCIL
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Chairman EJ&

=]

Prof. WONG Yuk-shan, BBS, JP &R |L#i% LT 2E

Vice-Chairman BIEE
Mr Philip LEUNG Kwong-hon 22 54

Member £8

Ms Linda CHAN Ching-fan, SC [REF S &R AR

Mr Chapman CHAN Chor-man BRIE 354

Mr Samuel CHAN Ka-yan, JP BRZRER REERD  AFf+
Mr Clement CHAN Kam-wing [RERZ8 54

Ms Grace CHAN Man-yee R B2+

Ms Jo Jo CHAN Shuk-fong BEZS 4+

Mr Thomas CHENG Kin-hon (up to 2014-12-31)
EERERSEA (2 2014-12-31)

Dr David CHUNG Wai-keung $&{Z5@1H 1
Ms Amy FUNG Dun-mi JEFHB#Z £

The Hon. Steven HO Chun-yin A/ BEE
Prof. Michael HUI King-man 5F#30U%

Mr Bankee KWAN Pak-hoo (up to 2014-12-31)
BE S (2 2014-12-31)

Ms Miranda KWOK Pui-fong (up to 2014 - 05-02)
RIS LE (= 2014-05-02)

Mr Ambrose LAM San-keung, JP (since 2015-01-01)
WASTERAERD - AT (1 2015-01-01)

Mr Kevin LAM Sze-cay (since 2015-01-01)
MEFIZE4 (7 2015-01-01)

Dr Raymond LEUNG Siu-hong 24 EEtE1

Mr Keith LIE Kin-fu Z5 (2 5c4

Prof. Angela NG Lai-ping REESEZIR

Dr Karen SHUM Hau-yan JLZfikB& 4

Prof. WONG Kam-fai, MH Z#IB %% » LT
Ms WONG Shu-ming &7+

Mr Kent WONG Siu-kee (since 2015-01-01)
ERRESAE (H2015-01-01)

Mr Alvin WONG Tak-wai EEEE4

A i

Co-opted Member (HEERSSILERS
Mr CHAN Ka-kui, BBS, JP BREBASEA  SAEFIE S » AT # L
Mr John CHIU Chi-yeung, JP #5354 AP #+

Ms Constance CHOY Hok-man ZE2Z R0

Mr Raymond CHOY Wai-shek, MH, JP
RERSLE RBERE WL

Mr Francis FONG Po-kiu J5{RE5%4

Mr Ambrose HO, SBS, SC, JP
Mm R E R R REFEE  KEML

Prof. Ron HUI Shu-yuen (up to 2015-03-31)
FENRFAIR (£ 2015-03-31)

Mr Kelvin KWOK Hiu-fai SREEEI L4

Mr Larry KWOK Lam-kwong, BBS, JP (up to 2015-02-03)
SRR - AKFI 2 S AL (= 2015-02-03)

Mr Daniel C. LAM, BBS, JP #&5E4 » K ZE » AFHL
Mr Edmond LAM King-fung # &) 2420
Dr LAW Cheung-kwok Z&#£ B+

Mr Michael LI Hon-shing, KSJ, BBS, JP (up to 2015-03-31)
FEWAA  REENSRIHE AERFAES KEMLT
(£ 2015-03-31)

Mr Fred LI Wah-ming, SBS, JP
FERLLE REFES NPT

The Hon. Charles Peter MOK, JP (up to 2015-03-31)
SETEE AL (E 2015-03-31)

Ms Bonnie NG Hoi-lam R\t
Ms Clara SHEK AR B+

Prof. Nora TAM Fung-yee, BBS, JP (since 2015 01 26)
EEEHR  HEFEE APt (F52015-01-26)

Dr Michael TSUI Fuk-sun #R{@ %2884
Dr Max WONG Wai-lun £ =+
Ms Cecilia WOO Lee-wah BBFIZEERAM
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MEMBERSHIP OF THE COMMITTEES,
WORKING GROUPS AND ADVISORY GROUP
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Staff and Finance Committee
ANEREIFE/E
Chairman E£J&

Prof. WONG Yuk-shan, BBS, JP
BRI REFEE AT

Vice-Chairman BIZEE
Mr Philip LEUNG Kwong-hon Z23¢5# 454

Member £8
Mr Chapman CHAN Chor-man BRIE 354

Mr Clement CHAN Kam-wing ( since 2015-01-26)
BREBLESEA (1 2015-01-26)

Mr Bankee KWAN Pak-hoo (up to 2014-12-31)
BESLE (£2014-12-31)

Ms Miranda KWOK Pui-fong (up to 2014 - 05-02)
RIS Lt (= 2014-05-02)

Prof. WONG Kam-fai, MH S $31EHIY » 28T

Mr Kent WONG Siu-kee (since 2015-01-26)
EHBELSEA (B 2015-01:26)

Mr Alvin WONG Tak-wai E={EER4

Audit Committee E§%/\H
Convenor BE A

Mr Alvin WONG Tak-wai EE{ELE4

Member &8
Mr Clement CHAN Kam-wing [RERZE 504
Dr David CHUNG Wai-keung $E{E32 181

Co-opted Member & & 8
Ms Cecilia WOO Lee-wah Bl F]ZE/E AT

Competition Policy Committee
R USRI 52/ Vi
Chairman E£J&

Mr Samuel CHAN Ka-yan, JP (since 2015-01-26)
PR ZR B AR FREM » A # - (1 2015-01-26)

Mr Thomas CHENG Kin-hon (up to 2014-12-31)
EiERER A (Z 2014-12-31)

Vice-Chairman BIEE

Ms Linda CHAN Ching-fan, SC ( since 2015-01-26)
BREFSEZRAMERD (1 2015-01-26)

Mr Samuel CHAN Ka-yan, JP (up to 2015+ 01-25)
PR ZRBR AARAD - A # (= 2015-01-25)

Member £8

Ms Linda CHAN Ching-fan, SC (up to 2015-01-25)
BREFSEZRAMERD (£ 2015-01-25)

The Hon. Steven HO Chun-yin (/2 EZ& S

Mr Ambrose LAM San-keung, JP (since 2015-01-26)
MRETSRERAD AR (H 2015-01-26)

Mr Kevin LAM Sze-cay ( since 2015-01-26)
EFIELSEAE (2015 01-26)

Mr Philip LEUNG Kwong-hon (up to 2015-01-25)
RIEHA (Z 2015-01-25)

Dr Raymond LEUNG Siu-hong 24 B+
Mr Keith LIE Kin-fu 22t

Co-opted Member IBiEES

Mr Ambrose HO, SBS, SC, JP
(A E R R IREF 2 S KL

Mr Kelvin KWOK Hiu-fai SREElES 4
Dr LAW Cheung-kwok ZE#EE 1

Legal Protection Committee
AERESH/IE
Chairman /&

Mr Samuel CHAN Ka-yan, JP (since 2015-01-26)
BREBR AERAD - A At (F 2015-01-26)

Mr Thomas CHENG Kin-hon (up to 2014-12-31)
EgEERAA (£ 2014-12-31)

Vice-Chairman BIEfE

Ms Linda CHAN Ching Fan, SC (since 2015-01-26)
BREF S E ZRARMEAED (H 2015-01-26)

Mr Samuel CHAN Ka-yan, JP (up to 2015-01-25)
PR 2R BR R AN - A #— (= 2015-01-25)

Member £8

Ms Linda CHAN Ching-fan, SC (up to 2015-01-25)
BREFSERAERD (£ 2015-01-25)



Mr Ambrose LAM San-keung, JP (since 2015-01-26)
MRFTREEN R4t (B 2015-01-26)

Mr Alvin WONG Tak-wai EEEE4

Co-opted Member #:8& 8
Ms Constance CHOY Hok-man ZEFE 24
Mr Edmond LAM King-fung #RSh &2l

Publicity and Community Relations
Committee

EEEtERFER)E
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CONSUMER COUNCIL AND OFFICE
HEBAZEG IR =

Prof. WONG Yuk-shan, BBS, JP
ERILHER ARFAEE AT

Vice-Chairman BIEfE

Mr Philip LEUNG Kwong-hon
RAESL

CONSUMER COUNCIL
HEEZREE

RESEARCH & SURVEY DIVISION 5t K& & &3
b Principal Research & Survey Officer Ms Rosa WONG Wan-ming #
MEREEHEEEE SEALL

PUBLIC AFFAIRS DIVISION A+ E7#%:B

Principal Public Affairs Officer Ms Deanna CHEUNG Kin-wah #
AHFHHEETE SEFELL

PLANNING & TRADE PRACTICES DIVISION R8I B, &4 F 2B 55D
Chief Executive = Principal Planning & Trade Practices Officer (Acting) Dr Victor HUNG Tin-yau #
WEE KRENBEF 2B aFEIE (BHE) BXERL

Ms Gilly WONG NJ"'
FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION DIVISION BA# 1T EUEB

Fung-han
=B it Head of Finance & Administration Division Ms Stephanie LING Yee-mi
r B RATIRED R HE R ARt

HUMAN RESOURCES DIVISION A A& IESD
Head of Human Resources Division Mr LEE Wing-kai

r ASEEERME AT RS
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY DIVISION &\ % $%%B
l Head of Information Technology Division Mr Ricky NG Chi-wah
BB AT REERE

LEGAL AFFAIRS DIVISION £ I8

"-J Head of Legal Affairs Division Mr Eddie NG Yick-hung #
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Mr Simon CHUI CONSUMER EDUCATION DIVISION JH&E&HE =B Consumer Council
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SECRETARIAT 57

= Operated by 1 Senior Committee Secretariat Officer
H—ERRERTEWNEETRARERE

COMPLIANCE & 5%
] Operated by 1 Senior Compliance Officer
H—E2RRREEHEEIAaEREER

Remuneration for top three tiers of staff in the Consumer Council

HEEE =R 8

Chief Executive — Directorate Pay Scale Point D3 #8825 — B R M5 D3

Deputy Chief Executive — Directorate Pay Scale Point D1 BI#8# 5 - BRI RERFH D1

# Principal Officer / Senior Legal Counsel — Master Pay Scale Point 45 — 49 & 34T — #8552 45 - 49
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CONSUMER COUNCIL
HEEERE
(Established in Hong Kong under the Consumer Council Ordinance)

(1RE CHEEZZREERM) EFEMIL)

Financial Statements

BECEES
For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE_T-RF-A=+—HLEE

The English version of this financial statements shall prevail over the Chinese version for the purpose of interpretation.

APBHER P RURAMBEMER  —BILIRSURARZE -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT i v7 1% S fifi 2 4 =&

TO THE MEMBERS OF CONSUMER COUNCIL

(Established in Hong Kong under the Consumer Council Ordinance)

We have audited the financial statements of Consumer Council (the "Council")
set out on pages 65 to 83, which comprise the statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2015, and the income and expenditure statement, statement of
changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Council's Members' Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Council's members are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, and for such internal control as the Council's members
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with the agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the Council's preparation of financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Council's internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Council's members, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of the Council's affairs as at 31 March 2015 and of its deficit and cash flows

for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
27 July 2015
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INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT W358
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 i Z—ZF—HF=A=1+—Hl5E
NOTES 2015 2014
15 —F—hfF —F—uE
HK$ HK$
T T
Income WA
Government subvention BB TR 98,829,000 94,537,000
Non-recurrent projects subvention I E BB R 6 6,472,491 7,452,712
Sales of "Choice" magazine SHE GEE) AT 2,236,863 2,071,899
Administrative service income TEARISUAN 2,710,000 2,354,000
Interest on bank deposits RITERFE 396,291 335,291
Sundry income HETEA 708,732 164,218
111,353,377 106,915,820
Less: B
Expenditure 2]
Staff costs RERA 8 83,341,124 77,074,272
Testing and research SBIER AR ZT 5,283,426 5,560,756
Non-recurrent projects expenses JEREMIAEERY 9 5,654,938 6,353,271
Depreciation for property, plant and equipment L/ERY TS N 2,310,980 2,646,103
Office equipment and maintenance DN PG 1,746,237 1,511,638
Office accommodation and related expenses M= LR E A 4,328,128 3,040,754
Auditor's remuneration B AN 155,000 148,500
Consumer education HEERE 643,484 566,909
Consumer international membership fees B EEEHESESE 391,418 356,369
Council member expenses RESTEHRY 50,200 53,000
Interest expense on secured bank borrowing not wholly  RERAFAEEUEERIGEIFRIT
repayable within five years ERAMESH 19155 22,360
International conferences and duty visits Bl G 242,860 430,471
Production and marketing cost of "Choice" magazine CRIZ) BT S E S 2,137,764 1,667,304
Publicity and public relations EENAE 901,873 1,465,950
Other administrative expenses HATHRER 4,197,617 4,884,727
111,404,204 105,782,384
(Deficit) surplus for the year AEE (F18) Bek ___(50,827) 1,133,436
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION WA HE#
AT 31 MARCH 2015 =& —RE=B=+—H
NOTES 2015 2014
i s ==
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment L/E R 2N 10 52,328,492 53,386,829
Current assets REEE
Debtors, deposits and prepayments FEWRTR ~ 12 R TE IR 1 1,700,697 1,671,687
Loans and advances to staff EHEE THERKATEX 1 46,275 58,192
Amount due from Consumer Legal Action Fund SHEETFAESHEKGIE 1 2,710,000 2,354,000
Bank balances and cash RITHEER R 2 12 53,368,179 42,521,376
57,825,151 46,605,255
Current liabilities ENEE
Subscriptions received in advance EWETEER 936,762 839,724
Accounts payable and accrued charges e RS IESTER 13 5,435,246 4,671,801
Provision for untaken leaves RIE 2 BT RE R 5,110,946 4,795,357
Secured bank borrowing HIERRITER 14 368,223 365,042
Subventions received E WK 15 21,897,388 12,496,229
33,748,565 23,168,153
Net current assets RBEEFE 24,076,586 23,437,102
Non-current liability ERERE
Secured bank borrowing BEMRITER 14 1,401,952 1,769978
75,003,126 75,053,953
Representing: e
Leasehold property control account FHEYZESFIIRIA 16 51,195,466 52,090,328
Equipment control account R HIERIE 17 1,133,027 1,296,501
Designated fund for approved projects ZEEBEEZIEEES 18 4,878,953 4,844,094
Accumulated surplus RERMS® 17,795,680 16,823,030
75,003,126 75,053,953

The financial statements on pages 65 to 83 were approved and authorised for issue by the members of Consumer Council on 27 July 2015,
and are signed on its behalf by:

HINE 65 £ 83 AENFBEBRRECN_F—AF AT tABHEEZS SRS ET RS WH T IINERES:

Ms Gilly Wong Fung-han
EREZLT
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
s




CONSUMER COUNCIL HBEZES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 8475k Appendix 5 « fif#&

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY HEf&5# @)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 & Z_F—hAF=A=1+—HLFE

Leasehold Equipment Designated fund

property control control for approved  Accumulated

account account projects surplus
HEW=E B4t 35 ] EX Total
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
AT T AT AT AT
At 1 April 2013 MWIE—=FmA—H 53,293,217 1,935,052 6,231,805 12,460,443 73,920,517
Surplus for the year REERR - - - 1,133,436 1,133,436
Current year addition ~ AFEIBMNESER 112,983 691,680 294,724 (1,099,387) -
Current year utilisation ~ AFEFRASER (1,315,872) 1,330,231 (1,682,435) 4,328,538 -
At 31 March 2014 NIE—LFE=A=+—H 52,090,328 1,296,501 4,844,094 16,823,030 75,053,953
Deficit for the year REEFE - - - (50,827) (50,827)
Current year addition ~ AFEIBNESEE 520,172 732,472 329,583 (1,582,227) -
Current year utilisation AN FEFASER (1,415,034) (895,946) (294,724) 2,605,704 -

At 31 March 2015 W_F—hF=R=1—H 51,195 466 1,133,027 4,878,953 17,795,680 75,003,126
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS Bl it #
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 i Z—F—HF=A=1+—H1L5E
2015 2014
—F—hF FNE
HK$ HK$
AT AT
Operating activities EEE
(Deficit) surplus for the year FE (F8) 8% (50,827) 1,133,436
Adjustments for: FLINEEFH A%
Government subvention for addition of property, plant and SLEEEYZE a3 K2 BN (817,553) (1,099,441)
equipment
Interest expense FEXH 19,155 22,360
Depreciation for property, plant and equipment W2 MBS SRR & 2,310,980 2,646,103
Interest income A EHA (396,291) (335,291)
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital MBESEERICEEBRERNE 1,065,464 2,367,167
Increase in debtors, deposits and prepayments FEUBR TR ~ #2< S TR SRIE 238 00 (23,096) (201,346)
(Increase) decrease in amount due from Consumer Legal Action Fund SHEEFAESEWEIEZ (38h0) B (356,000) 20,000
Increase in subscriptions received in advance BT B E L m 97,038 107,236
Increase in accounts payable and accrued charges FEMTERR A FEST & A 238N 763,445 606,877
Increase in provision for untaken leaves REEZ B FFHBRRRE2EM 315,589 251,453
Cash generated from operations EERFAECHERE 1,862,440 3,151,387
Interest paid EARAE (19.155) (22,360)
Net cash from operating activities EEEREFEZREETR 1,843,285 3,129,027
Investing activities REEH
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME W RE (1,252,643) (804,663)
New loans and advances to staff mMETRECHERRTEX (130,617) (160,392)
Repayments of loans and advances from staff ETINENERKTEX 142,534 168,045
Placement in time deposits with original maturity over three months IR REIH RA =18 Hz EHFR (12,501,553) -
Interest received EWAIE 390,377 325,216
Net cash used in investing activities AR EERE 2RS35 13,351,902 (471,794)
Financing activities RhEEE
Government subventions utilised for non-recurrent projects FARIEREMER  BIFER (4,790,103) (5,485,218)
Funds utilised for other non-recurrent projects FAREMIEKEHEEES (864,834) (868,054)
Repayment of bank borrowing BRIBITER (364,845) (361,640)
Funds received for other non-recurrent projects REMIEEEHIBEESES 984,349 863,954
Government subventions received for non-recurrent projects WEFERCE IR B AR 2 BUR R 14,889,300 2,590,391
Net cash from (used in) financing activities ME AR (81H) 2IREFHE 9,853,867 (3,260,567
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents RERREEFEERFHEZRAD (1,654,750) (603,334)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year REAEVZIRERBESEER 42.521.376 43,124,710
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year RAERZBRERFEEEEEE 40,866,626 42,521,376
Time deposits with original maturity over three months FEIEEE=EA ZERFR 12,501,553 -

Total bank balances and cash

RITHEEBRRIREHEEE 53,368,179
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W% &1

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 & Z_F—hAF=A=1+—HLFE

1 ORGANISATION AND ACTIVITIES 1 REEHNRED

The Consumer Council (the "Council") is a body corporate with perpetual
succession established under the Consumer Council Ordinance 1977
(Chapter 216, Laws of Hong Kong) for the purpose of protecting and
promoting the interests of consumers of goods, immovable property and
services. It is mainly funded by Government subventions. The Council
is also appointed as trustee for the Consumer Legal Action Fund under a

HEERE® (TR88)) ERE-NEEF 8
BERSREM) (BBEBIE216E) RIZHIKX
EEEER  BVEREMGEBEEERR R
FEMRBHE LNELS - ESRREIZRBUN
BREN REGTRIEEEBNEZER/EE
%Dﬁ:’/\ﬁ%Zx?}\ ENRMEEEREERE

Deed of Trust for the purpose of offering financial assistance to consumers BESREBE HEMELD REKCERY-
in seeking legal redress, remedies and protection.
The address of both the registered office and principal place of operation ZAEMMER R T REE I RE

of the Council is 22nd Floor, K. Wah Centre, 191 Java Road, North Point,
Hong Kong.

The Council is exempted from profits tax under the provision of section 87
of the Inland Revenue Ordinance.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is
same as the functional currency of the Council.

As the Council is a non-profit making organisation, an income and
expenditure statement is prepared to account for the results of its
operation.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS ("HKFRSs")

Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The Council has applied for the first time in the current year the following
amendments to HKFRSs and a new Interpretation issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA"):

AREEE
bAEEEE 191N B ERBRR L2218 -

?’! RIE (RIS IRBI) B8 TIRRE R AF

\
éH

RE BRI LUETIH R BITIRE
ThREEE -

HNZESRIEL AR FILREWANFESIR
BEERREENEERR -

ZEEM

BRI RAERT 2 BB HREER (TEEY
BEREER)
ERIHTET REAE T2 BB 3 AR

REER ZESCERNHTBEIASHE
MUATNHTE] KB BBy i‘%ﬁﬁ%/ﬁ/ﬁu

Amendments to HKFRS 10,  Investment Entities BHEVBREEANE 10 577 2 KREEE
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 /%Eﬁ%ﬁﬁifia £ 12 %L
BEHEAZE 27 (B
nTZ'K)
Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and EBGTHERIZE 32 5% (BF]40) Ralic-enz
Financial Liabilities B EAIEEHE
Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for EBGTHERIZE 36 5t (18514 FEmMEER
Non-Financial Assets [B] I & %8
B 2=
Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and EEETHERIZ 39 97 (IBFTA) ERMTATA
Continuation of Hedge Accounting E#ha
FTRVIEE

HK(IFRIC) - Int 21 Levies

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs and the new Interpretation
in the current year has had no material impact on the Council's financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years and/or the
disclosures set out in these financial statements.

EEERVERRENRERZ
E8)—RBE 21 5%

REETRIM AU E] LA B R BB M IR 2R
HWERFEENERNFE E’Jﬁa“?%i&%& | HRET W
KATEMNEERBEERE -




CONSUMER COUNCIL HBEZES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B475R3< Appendix 5  f§#&

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W% W&

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 & Z-F—hAF=A=1+—HLFE

2 APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") — continued

2 BRMFRTRAEMETT 2 BB &R ("&ER
BEREAER ) —HF
ERRAERELZH5] RIS BB iR - ER)

EESUAED ROTIDHEH AL UL
ST RIS T 2 BB R B R 2R

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Council has not early applied the following new and revised HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 11
HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 16

and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 27

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 -
2012 Cycle'

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011 -
2013 Cycle’

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012 -
2014 Cycle’

Investment Entities: Applylng the
Consolidation Exception®

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture’

Accounting for Acqwsmons of Interests in
Joint Operations®

Financial Instruments*
. 5
Revenue from Contracts with Customers
. e .. 3
Disclosure Initiative

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation’

Agriculture: Bearer Plants®

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions’

Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with limited

exceptions

? Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

* Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

“ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

° Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

The Council's members anticipate that the application of the above new
and revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the results and the
financial position of the Council.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W% &1

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 & Z_F—hAF=A=1+—HLFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 FEFEECR

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services. The principal accounting
policies adopted are as follows:

Income recognition

Income is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts and sales
returns.

- Sales of "Choice" and other publications are recognised when goods
are delivered and title has passed.

- Sales of "Choice" on-line subscription are recognised when services are
provided.

- Licence fee income for "Choice" on-line is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the -relevant licence term.

Interest income from a financial assets is recognised when it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Council and the amount of
income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Government subventions

Government subventions for recurrent projects are recognised when funds
are appropriated by the Government.

Government subventions for non-recurrent projects are recognised as
income over the periods necessary to match with the related costs which
are intended to compensate on a systematic basis.

Capital contribution

Contribution of cash and capital assets by the Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region (the "HKSAR") are accounted for as
capital contribution and recognised in the appropriate equity account.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of property,

plant and equipment, other than buildings, less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal
or retirement of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in the income and expenditure statement.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 & Z-F—hAF=A=1+—HLFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Council
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Council's financial assets are classified as loan and receivables. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of
a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts (including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective basis for debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including debtors,
loans and advances to staff, amount due from the Consumer Legal Action
Fund, and bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment on financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for
short-term receivables where the recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment on financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:
® significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

® breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments; or

¢ it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment
loss recognised is the difference between the asset's carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset's original effective interest rate. If, in a subsequent period, the
amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through income
or expenditure to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the
date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 & Z_F—hAF=A=1+—HLFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 3 FEEHBR—E

Financial instruments - continued

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including accounts payable and secured bank
borrowing) are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost
of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments (including all fee paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premium or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Derecognition

The Council derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Council neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Council continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated liability.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in
the income and expenditure statement.

The Council derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Council's obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the income and
expenditure statement.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 3 FEFEHBR—E

Impairment on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Council reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in the income and expenditure
statement.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in the income and expenditure statement.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.
All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Council as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the
leased asset are consumed.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Council
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have been
transferred to the Council. The entire lease of the Council's land and
building is classified as a finance lease and accounted for as property, plant
and equipment.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 3 FEGHBR—E

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of the Council, transactions in
currencies other than the functional currency (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in income and
expenditure statement in the period in which they arise.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the income and expenditure
statement in the period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged as
an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

4 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Council is funded mainly by Government subventions. The Council
members manage its funds to ensure that the Council will be able to
continue as a going concern. The Council's overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.
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5 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 5 €MTH

a Categories of financial instruments B el TEER

2015 2014
F—hF F—ME
HK$ HK$
BIT BT

Loans and receivables (including cash and cash equivalents) ERMEUGRIE (BEBFEEIHRELFEER) 56,383,051 45,195,045

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

USSR AT EBMS R AE 5926112 5,812,441

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Council's major financial instruments include debtors, loans and
advances to staff, amount due from the Consumer Legal Action Fund,
bank balances and cash, accounts payable and secured bank borrowing.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments and the policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The Council's members
manage and monitor these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Credit risk

The Council has no significant concentration of credit risk on debtors,
and loans and advances to staff as the Council's members consider the
amounts involved are insignificant.

The credit risk on deposits at banks is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings.

The credit risk arising from default in the payment by the Consumer
Legal Action Fund is limited as the counterparty is financially capable.
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Market risk
Foreign currency risk management M B

Certain transactions of the Council are denominated in currencies
set out below which are different from the functional currency of the
Council, i.e. Hong Kong dollars, and therefore the Council is exposed
to foreign currency risk. The carrying amounts of the Council's foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

ZEENELTZEUTIE R E AitaLs
BMIIFRE SIS - B RS S
SEHIMNEER - TS TR ZEELS
rrENEBEEREECREENT:

Assets Liabilities
gE =t
2015 2014 2015 2014
_B—hF _F— _F—T1F —_F—
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BIT BIT BT BIT
United States dollars ESTW 105,647 105,003 - -
Euro BT 368,595 584,547 1,062,204 145,625
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5 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

b Financial risk management objectives and policies - continued

Market risk - continued

The following table indicates the approximate change in the Council's
income and expenditure in response to reasonably possible changes in
the foreign exchange rates to which the Council may have exposure at
the end of the reporting period.

5 EMTE—#

Z WHERBREEERNMBR—E

Be—i8
TREREESEREHERE FINEER

RIEATREEM LTS AR KBS 2 BB -

2015
5=

Increase (decrease)
in foreign exchange Effect on income
rates (expenditure)
SIS PER HUTA(Z )
LARE ZEE
HK$
BIT
United States dollars ESIv 3% 3,169
(3%) (3,169)
Euro BRIT 10% (69,361)
(10%) 69,361

2014
—_EF—UFE
Increase (decrease)

in foreign exchange Effect on Income
rates (expenditure)
SMERER A GZIE)
LHACEER) B
HK$
BT
3% 3,150
(3%) (3,150)
10% 41,892
(10%) (41,892)

In the opinion of the Council members, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the year end
exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.

Interest rate risk

The Council's income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates. The Council's
exposure to changes in interest rates is mainly attributable to its
secured bank borrowing which bears interest at variable rates. The
Council has a policy to place surplus funds with creditable financial
institutions which offer the best rate on a short-term basis to facilitate
the bank loan interest payment. The Council's members continuously
monitor the cash flow interest rate risk.

Liquidity risk

The Council is dependent on the government subventions. The Council
members consider that the Council is exposed to minimal liquidity risk
as the Government would provide subvention for the Council based on
budgets prepared by the Council annually. The Council members also
closely monitor the Council's cash flow position.

Bank balances comprise of demanded deposits with an original maturity
of three months or less.
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5 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 5 &MTAE—@
b Financial risk management objectives and policies - continued 2 MBRRERERNRBR—E
Liquidity risk- continued nENE D EkE—E
Liquidity and interest rate table TEERFYEZ
The following tables detail the Council's remaining contractual maturity TR FHMHIIE T EZEGTESREEN
for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables have been drawn IR EHIHIR - ZEREDHRIENZ B G AR
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on R R APz EREBEREBEESN
the earliest date on which the Council can be required to pay. EiR%-
Weighted
average Total
effective 6 months 6-12 Over  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate or less months 1-5years  5Syears cash flows amounts
LS 7NMEH RET —= epial EN T IR
BERBEAIER EAYEN _E@A A AE IS mAERE &%
% HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BIT AT BIT AT AT BT
2015 —E—AF
Accounts payable FEATARER - 4,155,937 - = - 4155937 4,155,937
Secured bank borrowing HEHHERAT 0.97 192,000 192,000  1.428,370 - 1.812,370 1770175
&
4,347937 192,000 1,428,370 - 5968307 5926112
Weighted
average Total
effective 6 months 6-12 1-5  Over5 undiscounted Carrying
interest rate or less months years years cash flows amounts
=S 7NMER RET —= b REEIR fRmE
BEEFRIE LT —_EA hE heE B miERE il
% HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BIT T BIT T BIT BT
2014 —E—mE
Accounts payable FEATBRER - 3,677,421 - = - 3,677,421 3,677,421
Secured bank borrowing B EH#HERAT 0.96 192,000 192,000 1,536,000 275,208 2,195,208 2,135,020
&

3869421 192,000 1,536,000 275,208 5,872,629 5,812,441

¢ Fairvalue RN AT EER
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined SREERSHABBECATEBNREARE
in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on BEN RRAERFSREONMEE -

discounted cash flow analysis.

The Council's members consider that the carrying values of financial §§\§7 L £
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the financial pNEHEENSREAZRIEREATE
statements approximate their fair values. GEFS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 #iZ—F—hFE=BA=1+—HiIFE
6 NON-RECURRENT PROJECTS SUBVENTION 6 JEEEUIRBER
2015 2014
_F—HhF —_S—mE
HK$ HK$
TT AATT
Consumer protection studies RESEE BRI 2,674,440 -
High priority initiatives projects BERECIAR 1,976,537 -
Price surveillance project ERERIER 18,430 2,435,794
Price survey on diesel and gasoline LM R RERAS 868,321 871,444
Strengthening consumer protection project EEHEEERIER 22,500 9,188
Purchase of computer equipments EEENNRE 8,600 105,047
Other non-recurrent projects HhIEEMHIER 903,663 1,340,780
Consumer Council resources centre enhancement project BEEERPLOXETE - 246,000
Enhancement of computer systems BIEAREL - 309,718
Unfair trade practice campaign NAFEHEHEED - 2,134,741
6,472,491 2,452,712
7 SALES OF "CHOICE" MAGAZINE SHE () AT

Income from sale of "Choice" magazine, after deduction
of printing, artwork, postage and promotion cost
amounts to HK$99,099 (2014: HK$404,595).

STAFF COSTS

Staff costs include an amount of HK$7,061,027 (2014:
HK$6,855,609) in respect of contributions to retirement
benefits scheme.

FEINRRENR ~ iR E R ET R LMEEE AR - CRE) ATlZ#HER
AFy 99,0997 (ZF—M4F: 404,595%7T) «

BTImA

BT EAERE 7,061,027 #IT (ZF—4 1 6,855,609/87T) AR

RERIETRIAER

9 NON-RECURRENT PROJECTS EXPENSES IR MIREZH
2015 2014
B S T —F—IE
HK$ HK$
WL BT
Consumer protection studies REEEEB R 2,674,440 -
High priority initiatives projects BERECIAR 1,976,537 -
Price survey on diesel and gasoline SR RRMERRAE 864,835 868,054
Other projects HibEg 139,126 668,682
Price surveillance project ERERER - 2,435,794
Unfair trade practice campaign NAFEZELEED - 2,134,741
Consumer Council resources centre enhancement project HEEGERPOLIELRE - 246,000
5,654,938 6,353.271
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W% W&

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 & Z-F—hAF=A=1+—HLFE

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 10 ¥% - BERRE

Leasehold land

and buildings in Furniture
Hong Kong under Leasehold Office ~ Computer and Motor
long-term lease improvement equipment equipment fixtures vehicle Total
REERPEEN HEW= /N ik BrARLSL £
HE Lt RIEF £ ®’E B £KE B as
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BIT BT BIT BT BIT BIT
COST B
At 1 April 2013 RF—= 62,638,435 7,932,802 1,773,396 11,179,471 862,296 247,291 84,633,691
mA—H
Additions nE - 112,983 338,371 306,567 46,742 - 804,663
At 31 March 2014 RAITF—UE 62,638,435 8,045,785 2,111,767 11,486,038 909,038 247,291 85,438,354
=A=1+—H
Additions NE - 520,173 127,800 487,880 116,790 - 1,252,643
At 31 March 2015 RIZE—hA4F 62,638,435 8,565958 2,239,567 11973918 1,025,828 247,291 86,690,997
=R="*—H
DEPRECIATION  #T&
At 1 April 2013 RF—=4F 10,939,474 6,338,547 1,691,958 9,490,140 698,012 247,291 29,405,422
mA—H
Charge for the year FRZH 875971 439,901 169.206 070,893 90,132 - 2,646,103
At 31 March 2014  RITF—UE 11,815,445 6,778,448 1,861,164 10,561,033 788,144 247,291 32,051,525
=A=+—H
Charge for the year FRZH 875971 539,063 109,803 694,120 92,023 - _2,310980
At 31 March 2015 RITZE—A4F 12,691,416 7,317,511 1970967 11,2551 880,167 247,291 34,362,505
=R=*—H
CARRYING VALUES fREIE
At 31 March 2015 B —F4 49947019 1248447 268,600 _ 718765 145661 . 52328492
=A=+—H
At 31 March 2014 RITF—UE 50,822,990 1,267,337 _250,603 _ 925005 120,894 - 53,386,829
=B=1+—H
The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated over FAUEE ~ AR R st iR EL Al AR IR LU 4R
their useful lives using the straight-line method, at the following rates per KPIEREETINE:
annum:
Leasehold land Over the remaining term of the leases HELH B T ERHARR
Buildings Over the shorter of their useful lives or the BF ZRE A RS 1 AR S 2 R
remaining term of the lease of land R (LISEREETE)
Leasehold improvement 20% HEYRKE  20%
Office equipment 33.33% AR 33.33%
Computer equipment 33.33% BRI 33.33%
Furniture and fixtures 33.33% BREEE 33.33%
Motor vehicle 33.33% HEB)ES 33.33%
Leasehold properties with carrying value of HK$13,035,553 (2014: BREERA 13,035,553 Bt (ZF—WF:
HK$13,147,396) are under mortgage to secure the bank loan of the Council. 13,147,396 B70) WMEYMRERH FRRES
All the leasehold properties are under second mortgage in favour of the RITERMIER - T8 ZSHEWELUBIN R

Government. T AMEHREE ORI -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W% &1

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 & Z_F—hAF=A=1+—HLFE

11 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 11 HEthEmMEE
Other financial assets included debtors, loans and advances HiteMEEBREBKIRI  ME TRHEMNERETBZ UL EE
to staff and amount due from Consumer Legal Action Fund. %Eﬁgﬁgﬁﬂf‘]@”ﬁ%ﬂlﬁ o ZERIANHIIR AR B - FrmE T
The amounts are unsecured and interest-free. Except for REMERLIESH ST B AR HRIBE MRS
the loans and advances to staff which will be settled by SRENEFFRIE -
twelve monthly instalments, other amounts are repayable
on demand.

12 BANK BALANCES AND CASH 12 SRITHEB RIS
Bank balances and cash comprise cash and short-term RITHBIRSEER S NREIPAR=EANUNZ 2R
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less ;o UIRRERIEBBEIB =2 EEF12,501,503/7T (ZF
and time deposits of HK$12,501,553 (2014: Nil) with an —POEE 4E)  HRBREEE0TY & 1.15% 2 (ZF—MmE:
original maturity over three months, and carry interest at 0.8% & 1.2%) B FIZEFTH

market rates which ranged from 0.7% to 1.15% (2014: 0.8%
to 1.2%) per annum.

13 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED CHARGES 13 R R EITER
Accounts payable are unsecured, interest-free and repayable FERHIRANRAES At A8 BARB R BEERATURE &
according to the respective credit terms. The Council has EEAHENSRAREEIR URRENFEEEFEEHRA
financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all A28 AT -

payables are paid within the credit timeframe.

14 SECURED BANK BORROWING 14 FRABITER
2015 2014
S—hfE SN
HK$ HK$
BIT BIT
Carrying amount repayable: fEERRESR:
On demand or within one year HEREMTH—FR 368,223 365,042
More than one year, but not exceeding two years —F L HBARNEBRF 371,867 368,574
More than two years, but not more than five years MEM EBRNEBRF 1,030,085 1,127,258
More than five years hEMNE - 274146
1,770,175 2,135,020
Less: Amounts due within one year shown under current liabilities BB EE TN —FEANENFIR 368,223 365,042
1,401,952 1,769978
The loan which is secured by the Council's properties with ZEGLWXERPMENEFEMEMER 13,035,553 BT (ZF
carrying value of HK$13,035,553 (2014: HK$13,147,396) —IMEF 113,147,396 L) X EFILRE BARNEBIRITRIZE
bears interest at the lower of prime rate or 0.75% over the PFHFIER LF0.T5%MBEERKT S, i BAREE & —1
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate and will be repayable by RIB-NEF+ZREH - SR a AR BERHEY=-

monthly instalments, the last of which falls due in December
2019. The proceeds were used to finance the acquisition of
a leasehold property.
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15 SUBVENTIONS RECEIVED 15 SUER
2015 2014
—Z—hE _=E—fE
HK$ HK$
AT BT
Subventions unexpended at the end of the reporting period: EAREPIEREREB A EL:
Price surveillance project BIRERIER 202,735 221,165
Price survey on diesel and gasoline HkRRERRES 1,969,023 1,849,509
Strengthening consumer protection project REHEERRIER 774,590 797,090
Enhancement of computer systems BIAEHEL 1,523,463 2,708,288
Retention of time limited post IR RS BR 2 BT 1,881,300 -
Consumer protection studies IREHE B RS IZE 4,393,560 -
Consumer Council resource centre: HEEZEFERPL:
leasehold improvement HEWZEEE 256,244 256,244
enhancement project RETR 48,899 48,899
air-conditioning system ZERRIR - 46,000
High priority initiatives projects BEREIZIER 3,796,473 -
Consumer Council renovation HEEZESSWMSREN IRE 1,940,000 -
Training program = EE] 908,783 1,025,408
Conference room refurbishment SEEEELR 340,000 544,000
Digitalisation of "Choice" magazine CGEE) BTt 18,333 73,333
Accomplishing sever virtualisation SERRIBRAR E#E L 1,600,000 1,600,000
Other projects HithisH 2,243,985 2,453,284
Choice of tablet computer CGEEY BT REERRER = 550,000
35th anniversary activities 3SEFES) - 323,009
21897388 12,494,229

16 LEASEHOLD PROPERTY CONTROL ACCOUNT

The amount arises from capital contribution by the
Government for the acquisition of leasehold properties
and appropriation from general fund for subsequent
purchase of capital assets reduced by depreciation of
the related assets.

17 EQUIPMENT CONTROL ACCOUNT

The amount was appropriated from general fund in
previous years for the acquisition of office equipment,
computer equipment and furniture and fixtures and is
reduced by depreciation of the related assets.

16 FEMEMRHIRE

ZHERERANBEREMENBTRHES LR BEEREE
R —RRESHER BEEEEENTE -

17 B HIRRIR

ZRRAERE—RESEED  AREERATRE SERE

BRLEKE WHEEEEEITE -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 & Z_F—hAF=A=1+—HLFE

18 DESIGNATED FUND FOR APPROVED PROJECTS

The amount represents funds for current projects appropriated for the
below designated activities not yet incurred by the end of the reporting
period:

18 ZEREZIEEES

NRERTTRER  RARERMUTEEEBEEN
MAREBANES:

Online "Choice" operation reserve 8L (&) ATI2ERRE
Office equipment and maintenance BRI
Testing and research R AN

2015 2014
_F—FhE —EB—[uiE
HK$ HK$

BIT BT
4,300,344 4,300,344
249,026 249,026
329,583 294,724
4,878,953 4,844,094

19 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT

At the end of the reporting period, the Council had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in
respect of rented premises which fall due within one year and two to five
years amounting to HK$1,273,239 and HK$1,042,170, respectively (2014:
HK$767,428 and HK$480,947).

Leases are negotiated for a term ranging from one to two years, with fixed
rental over the terms of the leases.

20 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

The Council recharged a fee of HK$2,710,000 (2014: HK$2,354,000) for
administrative service and office support (comprising salary costs and
attributable overhead) provided to the Consumer Legal Action Fund (the
"Funds") during the year. The recharge is in accordance with the provision
of the Trust Deed governing the Funds and approved by both the Council
and the Board of Administrators of the Funds.

19 & EHREHKIE

RIRERERE ZESEANTRENEERY
ToERRK—FRAR_ENE  RIBBYERE
IR RRERERREDB A 1,273,239 BT
K 1,042,170 5T (ZF—04 : 767,428 HBITK
480,947H#7T) °

HEBERRR—EME  BAEHBENESR
EEHE -

20 RAR5 325

ZEENFRIREL 2,710,000 (ZF—M04F
2,354,00087T)  fERAFEFEEBRNES
(TE%, ) REESERBNMAZTE (BFFS
SHMAAEFE) WER - ZW B IREEEEDR
PGERNEEREEEHBEERNESWTERE
St
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CONSUMER ADVICE CENTRES

iH oD

inEanrannn 2929 2222

Fax fEESRHS : 2856 3611 Website #8ik : www.consumer.org.hk  E-mail &P : cc@consumer.org.hk

Hong Kong &FE[E New Territories ¥i5%[&

North Point Consumer Advice Centre Shatin Consumer Advice Centre

Room 1410, 14/F, Kodak House |l Room 442, 4/F, Shatin Government Offices
o 39 Healthy Street East, North Point e 1 Sheung Wo Che Road, Shatin

S EE LN WEBBBPL

A BEREIFMERE _HH141£1410F WHERSEIFPHBRFAEEIEI42F
Kowloon LEE[& Tsuen Wan Consumer Advice Centre

Room 105, 1/F, Princess Alexandra
Community Centre

G/F, Cheung Sha Wan Government Offices 60 Tai Ho Road. Tsuen Wan
303 Cheung Sha Wan Road - '
9 K o SHHHDY
’ o0 98 HOT B 605 e B it BARFS 0111052
RDEBEIOIFRIDEBITEEHT

Shamshuipo Consumer Advice Centre

Yuen Long Consumer Advice Centre
Tsimshatsui Consumer Advice Centre

G/F, Yuen Long District Office Building
G/F, Consumer Council Resource Centre o 269 Castle Peak Road, Yuen Long
3 Ashley Road, Tsimshatsui o
PGS X TOERFEEII
SO

TCEAS LA GTEAES) 26958 TR RINSE B RN
A = = R =R BT

HEBEZREGERTOMT

Wong Tai Sin Consumer Advice Centre

Unit 201, 2/F, Lung Cheung Office Block

138 Lung Cheung Road, Wong Tai Sin °

= AWM e
EARABEFIE 1 38REANMARIE2E 201 E o 9 o




PRODUCT TESTING REPORTS

Vi i il 53 AR

ELECTRICAL & ELECTRONIC GOODS
BRETFER

* Baby Feeding Bottle Sterilisers g0 EFi#

* Bread Makers 3061

* Espresso Coffee Makers RrRMNFH#

* Fitness Tracker Bands E#FI&

* Hair Dryers &3

* Headphones BBE R E ™

¢ |Induction Cookers and Radiant Cookers

LB N EPINE
* Mini Hi-Fi Systems f{Z{ F£40 5

* Mobile Phones (2 updates, total 40 models)
F# (k2K F40EBLSE)

* Printers FTEN#

* Projectors & &

* Soundbars REFtiHE
* Steam Irons B3}

e Tablet PCs (2 updates, total 48 models)
AR (HHR2% - FLas(ERISE) *

* USB Power Supplies USBE R FERS

* Vacuum Cleaners I EE##

e Wall Fans #ME5

* Window Type Air Conditioners & AT i
* Wireless Speakers HiF15E 25

PHOTOGRAPHIC EQUIPMENT &
SOFTWARE

WM R EE

e Camcorders ™

e Cameras (4 updates, total 79 models)

1B (HHRRAR - $£79/ERL5R ) *
* Cloud Storage Service Test Einf#EFARFEAE
* Internet Security Software Packages fB#&{RZE{F

* Published in CHOICE magazine and on Shopsmart website
SEERTIBR CE1F) ATIR TEBDERE S B ) Rk

Appendix 7 « fii#xt

FOOD & HEALTH FOOD
RYERERE®

e Children's Meal Sets 7BEE

* Egg Dishes & &Y

® Energy Drinks BEZ 8k

HEALTH & BEAUTY {R#REZR
e Anti-wrinkle Face Creams R8T
o Medical Thermometers for Home Use ZX 828 5t™

o Toothpastes &

HOUSEHOLD PRODUCTS FEE A
* Box and Soft Pack Facial Tissues & ZEMHE

® Chef's Knives FATUETAT )

* Emulsion Paints L%

o Pushchairs 8% FH#E"

AUTOMOBILE & CYCLING PRODUCTS
AEREHERAM

* Bicycle Helmets B EFHE

e Car Performance Test /S ERLAZAIF

o Child Car Seats RERERDER

e Crash Test of Cars /5 E1EE 85,

OTHERS Hfth
® Dry Pet Foods $#19%21&
* Soccer Balls B3*



PRODUCT INDEPTH STUDIES AND
MARKET SURVEY REPORTS

A iy W 8 i B i 2

ELECTRICAL & ELECTRONIC GOODS ER K EFEm

e Garment Steamers #5114

FOOD & NUTRITION ELRa&EE

* Milk Powder for Elderly A/ RE#
* Pre-packaged Chinese New Year Festive Food TR BEEFRM

HEALTH & BEAUTY REZX£%R

* Analgesic Patches 1FREZER,

* Baby Wipes 2535 2&M

e BB and CC Creams BBFE N CCHE

e Care for People with Incontinence s 2R

* Denture Cleansers and Adhesives 782 A MBI REH

* Drugs for Allergy /A BURIERVZEY)

* Drugs for Treating Cirrhosis FFi@{t BIZEY) /&

* Electronic Cigarettes EF /&

¢ Indigestion JH{t AR

¢ Make Up Cleansing Water and Cleansing Wipes Eli&7K & Eljig &
* Slimming Claims of Vibration Platforms EEIR VR ER

¢ Treatments for Herpes Zoster and its Prevention "4 8¢ | FUEE X FEBR

TOYS iIn&

* Toys and Costumes for Halloween BE2EIIT AL A M

HOUSEHOLD PRODUCTS ZFEEAdh

* Baby Carriers and Slings 257 #5%

* CSR of Wooden Furniture Manufacturers RERE4 ERNPHEMEET
* Domestic Fire Safety Products ZX/&E 5

* Water Filters JE7K2%

Appendix 8 * fft %\
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SURVEYS AND SERVICE STUDY REPORTS

ol 7 5 IR 55 it 78 i v

Market Surveys / Opinion Surveys / Price Surveys
hinAE / BRAE / BRHAE

* Annual Supermarket Price Survey FFEBHERAST

* Credit Card Mileage Programmes {5 RRITEZHRE 53]

* Local Pre-wedding Photo Packages AMIEHW BT EE

¢ Low Cost Carrier Services BEfARTS

¢ Bank Account Low Balance Fee $RITIESEEAE OUE

* Manufacturers’ CSR of Tablet PCs ‘AR B IS RIEFI D EH R EE
¢ Online Music Services 8 - &2k

* Opinion Survey on Outbound Package Tour /MEIRITEIS RS

e Overseas ATM Cash Withdrawal Services EME TR

* Textbook Expenditure Survey R EEEERAE

* Textbook Price Survey HRIEEKAE

¢ Textbook Revision Survey #HRIE X RAE

* Working Holiday Insurance T{E{RHA{RER

Indepth Studies ;FAMH 7R

¢ International Calling Services B KR EERIS

* Interventions for Autistic Children BEIERYFIIR

* Labelling of Prepackaged Fresh Food Produce TA%c B2 E R MIEE

* Laundry Services and Clothing Care Labelling JEAX RIS AW EIIZ

* Postnatal Care Services &H &R

* Recycling of Second-hand Clothes and Accessories (Collaborative Consumption) —F#ZXECAREI (E1EEE)
* Supermarket Price Labelling and Price Promotion FBiE& IR~ BEE i

* Published in CHOICE magazine and on Shopsmart website
SEERTIBR CE1F) ATIR TEBDERE S B ) Rk
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CONSULTATION PAPERS RESPONDED TO

BY THE COUNCIL
] M 85 ) SC AT

e Financial Services and the Treasury Bureau - Proposals for a Resolution Regime for Financial Institutions in Hong Kong (2014 -
04-16)
MREZREER - BEX—EBRAREBNERBBEZUZERT

e Securities and Futures Commission - The Regulation of Alternative Liquidity Pools (2014 - 04 - 25)
EFNHNEEBEREZES - EERERSTE

¢ Legislative Council Bills Committee - Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Bill (2014 - 05 02)
IERLEEEES - (AN (BE=FEAN) RHIER)

e Environment Bureau - Future Fuel Mix for Electricity Generation (2014 -06-18)
RER - RARZBEMRES

e Legislative Council Bills Committee - Insurance Companies (Amendment) Bill 2014 (2014 - 06 - 24)
WEEEREES - (Q014FERBAT (BF]) BHIEZR)

e Legislative Council Subcommittee on Food and Drugs (Composition and Labelling) (Amendment) (No.2)
Regulation 2014 - Food and Drugs (Composition and Labelling) (Amendment) (No.2) Regulation 2014 (2014 - 07 -22)
SEE QOVUFERMRZEY) (KA RIEE) (1BF]) (525%) 56 MMAEES - QOUFRMREY) (KA HEEREE) (185])
(Z525%) F61)

e Pharmacy and Poisons Board Hong Kong - Draft Code of Practice for Holder of Wholesale Poisons Licence and Draft
Code of Practice for Holder of Certificate of Registration as an Importer and Exporter of Pharmaceutical Products (2014 -
07-29)

BRERXELSEEER - (SEMBRREAARETR) R (GRAZERRENRREOBMNERSRFEARETA) BHA

* Financial Dispute Resolution Centre - Amendments to the Terms of Reference to Allow for Disciplinary Proceedings of
the Financial Dispute Resolution Centre (2014 - 08 - 26)
SR ABER L GERTO) - BLRRPOH SR AR S (HRTE" ) WBRESEMEL R CERNBBENE 2R

* Mandatory Provident Fund Authority - Providing Better Investment Solutions for MPF Members “Core Fund” (2014 - 09 - 30)
BREMAESAEEER - ARRTHERUEERESE

e Legislative Council Bills Committee - Securities and Futures and Companies Legislation (Uncertificated Securities
Market Amendment) Bill 2014 (2014 -10 - 06)
WEGEREEG - (Q0UUEBFLBERATES (REEZSFTIHER) RHIEE)

e Legislative Council Bills Committee - Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes (Amendment) Bill 2014 (2014 -10- 07)
MESERESS - (Q014FRFIMEARDEE (B]) REEXR)

e Competition Commission - Draft Guidelines on Complaints, Investigations, and Applications (Exclusions and Exemptions)
(2014-11-10)
BERLFERERES - Ko -ATNEF (BREHRR) ERES
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Land Registry - Latest Proposal for the Implementation of the Land Titles Ordinance - Rectification and Indemnity
Issues and Indeterminate Ownership Registers (2014 -11-28)
T Mg - Bt (LM ERGE) MRFEE - EEELBETE  MREREYXEFENZLM

Competition Commission - Draft Guidelines on the First and Second Conduct Rules and the Merger Rule (2014-12-10)
BEERFEBEES - F— FTRTRAIREHTRIEETES

Financial Services and the Treasury Bureau and Hong Kong Monetary Authority - Enhancements to the Deposit
Protection Scheme (2014-12-12)
MREBLEER BATREER - BLERRETS

Hong Kong Association of Banks - Review of Code of Banking Practice (2014-12-18)
BERITAE - RERITEETA

Legislative Council Panel on Food Safety and Environmental Hygiene - Proposed Regulatory Framework on
Nutrition and Health Claims on Infant Formula, Follow-up Formula, and Prepackaged Foods for Infants and Young
Children Under the Age of 36 Months in Hong Kong (2015 02-10)
VEERVZENBERELEFHEERES - BRHSMERUTEYRERNERETER BRAERRYRESERKALEE
RYNEBNRERBBNEZRERE

Legislative Council Panel on Health Services - Regulation of Private Healthcare Facilities (201502 17)
UESEEEBEES - REERBERE

Legislative Council Bills Committee - Private Columbaria Bill (2015-02-23)
UEEERFER - (REBRREMGHER)

Food and Health Bureau - Regulation of Private Healthcare Facilities (201503 -16)
RYREER - LEBEERERE

Legislative Council Bills Committee - Clearing and Settlement Systems (Amendment) Bill 2015 (2015- 03 -17)
IESERFES - (Q0VFREELRRBARIEENERER)
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14™ CONSUMER RIGHTS REPORTING AWARDS

o - DY it 3 2 RE A BT e

List of Adjudicators ¥ &%

Dr Francis LEE, Associate Professor, School of Journalism and Communication, the Chinese University of Hong Kong

HRRX RS HEE RS RAZRTUZE T

Mr LAU Chi-kuen, Principal Lecturer, Department of Journalism, School of Communication, Hong Kong Baptist University

ERREARBEEEGMEREREBMIISELEE

Dr FU King-wa, Assistant Professor, Journalism and Media Studies Centre, the University of Hong Kong
BEBREHMBENEEMFTR O BIRERES L

Dr LEE Ka-man, Assistant Professor, Department of Journalism and Communication, Hong Kong Shue Yan University

R AP ELEGRSRERRTREL

Ms SHAM Yee-lan, Chairperson, Hong Kong Journalists Association
BERETCERSTESERLL

Ms Zoe HUNG, Committee Member, Hong Kong Journalists Association
BEETEBERAERILERL T

Mr Tyrone SIU, Chairman, Hong Kong Press Photographers Association
BEEBYTERSIREEELRLE

Mr LEUNG Pak-ho, Committee Member, Hong Kong Press Photographers Association
BEEBELEWEARRATELE

Prof. WONG Yuk-shan, Chairman, the Consumer Council
HEERETIRaRILFR

Mr Philip LEUNG, Vice-Chairman, the Consumer Council
SHEERERRITERNELE
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Winning Entries 1§88 & &

HER! : ¥

=48 EHUHERMRT MR M — BERERR

iREE (BHImEFRGI) RIEE Bs BRH HES — BA%R

IR T TRED ) RIIRE RS REG ERE BE 5 RER BE — B3R

BE HEERERY [FirH — BBKERR
HEAXRBHASAPIE BRHEE KR BZR R — RAET

HER 455

£ HERY T8 RO {RFE 558 B — EARERR

$REE T AppsEFERR HclickSkFLBE Y2 24 — ERAW

I BREEERE RATREFY REERE SEE — AT

{82 Putting an end to gross floor area & Realty Strikes Sandy Li, Yvonne Liu and Peggy Sito — South China Morning Post
FIEREE AR, BEEA/ID TREE, BEBRIREZHR EE — =AT

#A5! - B

=¥ RERIET — ANARERR BIREE — BiHE
$R#E DREMHBE—FAF MEZ BN REE — nowifE&
$EE FRERAREHGIRS] FIRS - EIM — BiRHHE
BR mRsRReR RRE BN - BRI — nowiE&

#5 : BRI

£ FEER CEEEEE M EE R EEE — EHREEERAT

SRAE SEIGHEE IBEAYVKRR EEgEIT — BEBEA

$i5€ The Pearl Report: In The Eyes of The Beholder — Television Broadcasts
Michelle Chan, Gut Chan & The Production Crew of The Pearl Report Limited

BE SR e BEE R EEGREER — BEEEERAR

#85] : EEFE

£18 WEERBEGRII HKHE DS — B8L
RIS 2T FA _ mwma
e ERWH W B _ mxEa
BR PHEE FIE BB N

#5: ERKE

T8 HETESE S5R BER — FX&E
$RIE (REESRIC) BRI REEE TIEER — BH8E
g EEFNEEIRE B25 — EAEE
#EB - SRR
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POLL RESULTS OF TOP TEN CONSUMER NEWS
(YEAR OF THE HORSE)

X5 A5 1 K 22 0 [ 53 25 G OR

1 AERTEMER AEHAERETE (2,700Z)
2 PERERVAM ZRESEEHIRSG (2,689%Z)
3 EAPTREFZEER 30085 imAg X (2,186%)
4 iPhone 6 #EHITDE, (2,123E)
5 BEEEfHEnER (1,846%F)
6 HESWEMT—FEBHET L IRSERE (1,752Z&)
7 BEwITRE BERBMERME (1,637F)
8 EESTEMSENRBIMERNT ZHENK (1,623E)
9 BNRELERES HRIOFRILERTE (1,424%)

10 PIEMREMA HEEDH7H (1,252%&)
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16" WINNERS OF THE CONSUMER CULTURE

STUDY AWARD

o 1N i T (B 5 58 G R B A

Award #2818  Topic Z5EH School 2
Winner B E ] e Christian Alliance S C Chan Memorial College EE® RS fc e
Second T2 Journal of Desires Carmel Secondary School #ZZFHES
Third 28 Back To Basic Christian Alliance S C Chan Memorial College BB &R IH fio a2
Distinguished ~ ITERI Madam Lau Kam Lung Secondary School of Miu Fat Buddhist Monastery WAF 2| & EEHES
gﬁwﬂz;%&ﬁ OFE HKSYC & IA Wong Tai Shan Memorial College A UER L2 =R SHE
The Best E ] Christian Alliance S C Chan Memorial College BB InZ il &hE&
Topic Award
REEER
Merit forthe  Journal of Desires Carmel Secondary School #1ZFHE
isvsatr'dl'opic Back To Basic Christian Alliance S C Chan Memorial College B & RiH= fl &
BEEER EREAHR Lai Chack Middle School EEjZre

TFE HKSYC & IA Wong Tai Shan Memorial College F# M &M L2 &ML

Senior Division S#k#E

Award 215 Topic EZEH School 8#;

Winner BE& BBIBEERRIG? St. Rose of Lima's College B2 &=

Second TR E BHE BTS? South Tuen Mun Government Secondary School FEHEPIE 7 &R
JHRS HKSYC & IA Wong Tai Shan Memorial College A IUER LiER =EMicaHE

Third %8 NERFENDLL Ho Lap College (Sponsored by The Sik Sik Yuen) AIAZHEE (B @ E )
BERERR R | HKSYC & IA Wong Tai Shan Memorial College H#H N &R T ES =i SHE

The Best Topic Award  1EEiZ BT &7 South Tuen Mun Government Secondary School FTEFIE T FHE

= gEde b

Merit for the Best EEEERERRIE? St. Rose of Lima's College B2 Z# =R

g%g%%d HTE HKSYC & IA Wong Tai Shan Memorial College & IU& 7 T & St arhes
SHR HKSYC & IA Wong Tai Shan Memorial College &8N ER T2 eififtic S mha

Outstanding Project Award #5{E S5

Junior Division #]#&#8

Topic EEREH
TE ., TE A

CE) - JRUEE) 7 — AR BN B 2

&R

School 2

Carmel Divine Grace Foundation Secondary School #1233 BHE2
Christian Alliance S C Chan Memorial College B & R fi e
St. Paul's Secondary School B2{R#%FE2

Senior Division S#k#H

Topic ZREH School E#;
TR, United Christian College JEEZEfr
WRATRREMIELS SKH Chan Young Secondary School B2AEREIAHE
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Commended Project Award EZF{EmLE
Junior Division ##&#H

Topic E2EH
EIRAANREE
JININCABE

W AL
HMAPHE IRE
WEHBRY
"B.R="kLA?
W—HT?!
BREUL?

School 1%

CUHK Federation of Alumni Associations Thomas Cheung Secondary School &R AE K A QB S RIEEHE
Hoi Ping Chamber of Commerce Secondary School Ik FREEHE

Wong Shiu Chi Secondary School T2 HE

Christian Alliance S C Chan Memorial College B8 & & im< i &FRE

Madam Lau Kam Lung Secondary School of Miu Fat Buddhist Monastery A5 25 EHE

HKFYG Lee Shau Kee College BT FHETIKEERT

HKSYC & IA Wong Tai Shan Memorial College &N &/ T @& =M

HKSYC & IA Wong Tai Shan Memorial College &N & L @& = io 2

Senior Division Sk

Topic E2EH
HEZIRS

BafE? (BR7EX!)
EER =Y

School &

Buddhist Tai Hung College ## R A&

The Church of Christ in China Fong Yun Wah Secondary School FREEE B # & J5HEEhE
King's College mE2Et

"REHE REZEE, — WHNER Wa Ying College #FEZFIZ
e T, T Ju Ching Chu Secondary School (Yuen Long) Z288FKARE2 (JTER)
THEEAR Lai Chack Middle School EEiZAHE2

PG REILRE St. Stephen's Church College B2 R EHE
SE?BREF? Yan Chai Hospital Wong Wha San Secondary School {77 B[z F #EjiiFR &2
RESENTLR? Yan Chai Hospital Wong Wha San Secondary School {Z /75 B[ TR

Special Mention Award 45BIZEEFEE

Junior Division #)#&k#8

Topic E2REH
FOZ T8,
NEEE—TERw
Disrgg?
BRI ER
Trick or Treat?

"B HESh

School 2%

Buddhist Tai Hung College &R ifEFRE2

Leung Shek Chee College 22 &t

Po Leung Kuk Tong Nai Kan Junior Secondary College fRR RETHEI#HELR
SKH Chan Young Secondary School B2/A & ERgiHE2

Tsuen Wan Government Secondary School Z/&E 17

HKSYC & IA Wong Tai Shan Memorial College &/ & /T2 S @il &2

Senior Division S#k#E

School £

Po Leung Kuk Ma Kam Ming College & B8R

Fukien Secondary School (Kwun Tong) {8222 (Ei¥E)

Lai Chack Middle School EEjZAE2

DMHC Siu Ming Catholic Secondary School REHRHE L FHAFHE

Yan Chai Hospital Wong Wha San Secondary School {Z 7B [ T EEjiiFR &2

Topic ZZEH

ENTE - BB D

= GOLD &

Tk - IS RIS

THE T AREBERR
HE BRE
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Special Mention (Topic) Award $5BIE 5T (€88 ) #8

Topic E2RzEH School 2

FHE IR The Church of Christ in China Fong Yun Wah Secondary School ARZEE B #H 25 HEHS
BEEE HKFYG Lee Shau Kee College BT FiHETILEERT

TRBR—ER Leung Shek Chee College 232 E R

Senior Division &#k#H

Topic EEREH School £

IBAEAT Heep Yunn School i EHE

TEaENss Good Hope School EBZE

FEU TR hLL SKH Chan Young Secondary School B2/A & [ gl A E2

"R E—EEFAHRNER  SKH Lam Woo Memorial Secondary School B2A& MAGE A&

Anniversary Award B8
Teacher f5EEA0 School 212

fre=—¥cd Buddhist Wong Fung Ling College 2= B E

I Buddhist Wong Fung Ling College 2= B2

sy s ] Buddhist Wong Fung Ling College {2 = B2

(Al K B Buddhist Wong Fung Ling College 2= B4 &

8 Buddhist Wong Fung Ling College = B4} HE2

=S Caritas Chong Yuet Ming Secondary School BAE #t FBFFH£2

FAfESTE Caritas Fanling Chan Chun Ha Secondary School BFAE¥)safiEEHE

2B The Church of Christ in China Kei Chi Secondary School FREEREE & H A HE
EREE Christian Alliance S C Chan Memorial College T & [RIH= fo e

e Hong Kong and Macau Lutheran Church Queen Maud Secondary School )R (E&E @R Eh&
SFEALE HKSYC & IA Wong Tai Shan Memorial College &# & T2 &M ahE
BE HKSYC & IA Wong Tai Shan Memorial College BN ER L A2 &t ic e
e HKSYC & IA Wong Tai Shan Memorial College &N ERM LA &t ic e
BEEL Hotung Secondary School fAJERAE2

[REE4 Ju Ching Chu Secondary School (Yuen Long) 2288722 (JTER)

ZEG Kowloon True Light Middle School JLEEEFHEE

RS Rosaryhill School (Secondary Section) BB 2K (FHEEER)

BPEREE Shun Tak Fraternal Association Leung Kau Kui College EfSBiEIE 2 R ERIEHE




4x10 COMIC EXHIBITION

LIST OF PARTICIPATING COMIC ARTISTS AND

CULTURAL CRITICS

Comic Artists J2E%F

4x10%EF=HE
22 e T K I AL Al SN 44 B

==

Alphonso WONG (Old Master Q) £32 (EX¥)
LEE Wai-chun (Miss 13 Dots) ZZE¥ (1355)
DOE Sum #t#

Craig AU YEUNG EifZFESE

Siu Hak /\5g

YEUNG Hok-tak 152272

Big Soil KB

WONG Chiu-tat &R

Postgal Workshop (Din-Dong) 6% (&l )

Tina KO

Cultural Critics S{tLEIE

Amy CHAN [T 4t
CHEUNG Tat-ming 3R%88
Kengo IP f#&

Joey LEUNG Z#H22

LUI Tai-lok &A%

NG Chun-hung &£ 1#
WONG Chi-chung #E&5R
WONG Chi-lung E%98E
Derek WONG =EEIA,
YAU Ching 5%

Appendix 14 « fff#x+Y
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WINNERS OF THE CONSUMER COUNCIL SPONSORED

THE BEST THEMATIC MICRO-FILM AWARD
MOBILE FILM PRODUCTION CONTEST 2014

THE 8™ HONG KONG MOBILE FILM FESTIVAL
HEBEAEZEGAY

o5\ i T ¥ ik B 52 e 6 — i B 5 ST b
Hifiai%ﬁﬁﬂ(‘:ﬁﬁ'ﬁ%f%i%%ﬁ

Award 3818 Film A& Director &;#

Gold Ting Ding CHENG Ka-shing (The Hong Kong Polytechnic University)
&8 Ty B (BBEIARE)
Silver Breathe Again LAl Wing-cheong
REE IBEEEL] HBXKE
Bronze The Wedding Memories TSOI Ho-fung
Elle BRATER FhE
Merit The Chinese Cheongsam MA Yan-wan (Hong Kong Baptist University)
B EFmiE AT \# ERE (BBRERE)
Dancing Shoes Samuel YAU (Dr Catherine F. Woo Memorial School)
BRIFEE e (FAREH LI RER)
SpecialMention Happy Selfie Time YAU Wing-yan, SUN Ming-wai (Hong Kong Baptist University)
RRIFATER RESAFFR BB RE2 (FESERE)
Portrait Picture Cards YEUNG Mun-tak (CUHK Federation of Alumni Associations Thomas Cheung School)

NGRS BimfE (EBPXRERREHERESER)
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A LIST OF EXTERNAL COMMITTEES ATTENDED BY
COUNCIL MEMBERS AND STAFF

AFEZBRIBAESHINNA R TG

e CLP Power - Customer Consultative Group

MESNERAR - EFHBHANE

e Committee on Reduction of Salt and Sugar in Food

BRESYTENREES

* Competition Commission
hEEBRER

e Competition Policy Advisory Group
BIBRABARES

e Department of Health - Pharmacy and F’oisons (Listed Sellers of Poisons) Committee
BEE - BRERSE (JS8SEHEER) 2T

¢ Department of Health - Taskforce on Hong Kong Code of Marketing of Breastmilk Substitutes
BEE - BESIAARBETARENMA

® Department of Justice - Public Education and Publicity Sub-committee

BHT - ARKBERSEIMEEER

* Department of Justice - Steering Committee on Mediation

REA) - AR TEE

® Department of Justice - Working Group on Class Actions

BIAE] - ERFATFENE

e Disciplinary Tribunal Panel (Electricity) under the Electricity Ordinance (Cap. 406)
IEEREEG (ENKEHIFEI06E)

® Education Bureau - Steering Committee on Selection, Quality Assurance and Review of the e-Textbook Market
Development Scheme

HER - ETHNENEHBEEE ERXRRENRIEEERES

e Electrical and Mechanical Services Department - Appeal Board Panel (Electricity Ordinance CAP 406)
BIRE - LHEEE (BNHEHIFHL06E)

e Electrical and Mechanical Services Department - Appeal Board Panel under Energy Efficiency (Labelling of Products)
Ordinance Cap 598
WBIREE - LREEGRRNS (ERRE) KREIF598E

e Electrical and Mechanical Services Department - Electrical Safety Advisory Committee
REIRE - BRZE2HBHAEES

e Electrical and Mechanical Services Department - Lift and Escalator Safety Advisory Committee

EIRE - ARRNKASHREEANRED

e Electrical and Mechanical Services Department - Task Force on the Review of Grading Standards under the Mandatory
Energy Efficiency Labelling Scheme

BEIREE - BIMtRRMEREAI DR ERNER/NE

e Electrical and Mechanical Services Department - Task Force on the Voluntary Energy Efficiency Labelling Scheme

BEIREE - BRMERM GRS S TENE

e Estate Agents Authority
WEREEER

e Estate Agents Authority - Finance and Strategic Development
WEREERER - WBRRBEREZES

* Estate Agents Authority - Licensing Committee
HEREEER - BREES
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e Estate Agents Authority - Practice and Examination Committee

HMEREEER - UXLERZES

e Food and Health Bureau - Committee on Improving Supply Chain of Powdered Formula
RUREER - RS DMHTEEESES

e Food and Health Bureau - Expert Committee on Food Safety
RUOLEER - RYR2EFEZES

® Food and Health Bureau - Working Group on Legal, Privacy and Security Issues of the Steering Committee on eHealth
Record Sharing
RUNEER - ETRECHOEEERES - 77 ABRRRTHEELENME

¢ Food and Health Bureau - Working Group on Regulation of Private Hospitals
BYMERER - ARBREEEELIFNE

® Hong Kong Accreditation Service - Users of HKAS Accredited Services Liaison Group

BERBE - BARE A F Big/E

® Hong Kong Accreditation Service - Working Party for Physical and Mechanical Testing
BBRAGE - WE LB T/

¢ Hong Kong Accreditation Service — Working Party on Accreditation of Product Certification Bodies

BERAR - e EER A8 TENE

e Hong Kong Council for Testing and Certification - Panel on Promoting Testing and Certification Services in Food
Trade
EERANZER - RRBANRERBEREERZES

¢ Hong Kong Deposit Protection Board - Advisory Panel on Communication and Public Education

ERGERRERZES - BAEAF /N

e Hong Kong Federation of Insurers - Appeals Tribunal

EERREBRE - CHREHR

® Hong Kong Federation of Insurers - Insurance Agents Registration Board

BRERREES - RBRENEELZES

¢ Hong Kong Internet Registration Corporation Limited - Consultative and Advisory Panel

EAOHBEMEERARATF - AARES

® Hong Kong Mediation Accreditation Association Limited - Council Membership
BERAREETEREARAR - REEEE8

¢ Hong Kong Monetary Authority - Banking Consumer Education Taskforce
BEESHEER - RITHEERB LFENMA

® Hong Kong Monetary Authority - Deposit-taking Companies Advisory Committee
EHREHEER - BEXERATEARES

* Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation - Board of Directors
BERZBESARAT - EERKE

¢ Innovation and Technology Commission - Panel on Promoting Testing and Certification Services in Jewellery Trade

BRI E - BHRETRRAMBERE N E

¢ Insurance Claims Complaints Bureau - Insurance Claims Complaints Panel

RERERFR - RBRRERFEZES

e Investor Education Centre - Advisory Committee

REBHBERL - FHERES

e Judiciary - Advisory Group of the Working Party on Review of Solicitors' Hourly Rates for Party and Party Taxation
BEMNE - 12 TR A HITEE ) TEAENS/N\NEMBEX e TR/ AR/

e Judiciary - Chief Justice's Working Party on Review of Solicitors' Hourly Rates for Party and Party Taxation

BREER TR YIRS | STEREREMNE/ N NFKRE X Zes TENE

e Land Registry - Land Titles Ordinance Steering Committee
THEEMR - THREGRIESRES



Appendix 16 « fff#x+7<

Office of the Commissioner of Insurance - Insurance Advisory Committee
RBRXEER - RREXDAEES

Office of the Communications Authority - Radio Spectrum and Technical Standards Advisory Committee
BAEBEERPAE - MIRSHAZNEMRELARES

Office of the Communications Authority - Telecommunications Regulatory Affairs Advisory Committee
BASBEERPAE - EAREEHALARES

Office of the Communications Authority - Telecommunications Users and Consumers Advisory Committee
BNEBEERMAE - BRBAFLEEESAZES

Office of the Solicitor - General, Department of Justice, Legal Policy Division - Costs Committee under Section 74 of the
Legal Practitioners Ordinance (Cap 159)
FRBREEWAE - BHA  FEBRM - BREOE 10T ERREEROFTVEEHERES

Official Receiver's Office - Services Advisory Committee
WEEEE - REAARES

Quality Taxi Services Steering Committee

BENLTRBEERES

Securities and Futures Commission - Products Advisory Committee
EFNPEEBEREZEE - ERAARES

Steering Committee on Review of Hospital Authority
BREERBEEEES

Steering Committee on Review of Regulation of Private Healthcare Facilities
NEBERERERNESRES

Tourism Commission - Advisory Committee on Travel Agents
REEHE - IKTHEBZEARES

Tourism Commission - Travel Industry Compensation Fund Management Board

RESHE - REXREESEERS S

Vocational Training Council - Beauty Care and Hairdressing Training Board

BIIRR - RAXEIREZES

Vocational Training Council - Working Group on Regulation of Medical Devices (Aesthetics Related)

BEIIRR - BEER (XBEs) WRETFNE

Water Supplies Department - Task Force on Voluntary Water Efficiency Labelling Scheme
KHBE - AKYRREE TIEE




ANNUAL REPORT OF THE
CONSUMER LEGAL ACTION FUND

iH 52 i ab 2k < AR



CONSUMER LEGAL ACTION FUND
MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

R €

CHAIRMAN
FIE

Mr Samuel CHAN Ka-yan, JP
YN

KRPAt:

VICE-CHAIRMAN
Al R

Mr Anderson CHOW Ka-ming, SC
(up to 2014-06-29)

[HEL N ¢/ INEai
(3 2014-06-29)

VICE-CHAIRMAN
RS

Mr Selwyn YU Sing-cheung, SC
(since 2014-10-29)

AR E B R

(H12014-10-29)

EMER

&
5

167

Mr Alex LAI Ting-hong
B AL

Mr Matthew LAM Kin-hong, MH
(up t0 2015-03-31)
RS SR T (2 20150 03-31)

[

Ms Alice LEE Suet-ching
At

Mr Edmond LAM King-fung
(since 2014-12-06)
RS EALE (201412 06)

&
|l| ! ! bl
[
| -

b

b

Dr LUI Wing-cheong

Dr LO Pui-yin
TR ICHER

Prof. Angela NG Lai-ping
SLI PR

Ms Gilly WONG Fung-han
BRI 2 1

Mr Kenneth WONG Wing-yan
TR T

Ms Jessica YOUNG Yee-kit
T SR A



ANNUAL REPORT OF THE
CONSUMER LEGAL ACTION FUND FOR 2014-15

R AR R o

The Consumer Council is the Trustee
of the Consumer Legal Action Fund (CLAF) through a Declaration of Trust

executed on 30 November 1994.

HEAZRBERZNEHERRESE (DTEMES) WEEA - BB —JULME

F A e FE R 3L

Purpose

The Fund was established with an initial Government grant of
HK$10 million. A further sum of HK$10 million was granted by the
Government to the Fund in May 2010. The Fund aims to give easier
consumer access to legal remedies by providing legal assistance,
particularly to groups of consumers with similar grievances in cases
involving significant public interest and injustice. Through supporting
justifiable cases, the Fund also aims at detering business malpractices
and enhance public awareness of their consumer rights.

Administration

The Consumer Council, as the Trustee, is responsible, through
a Board of Administrators, for the overall administration and
investment of the Fund. The Board of Administrators is in turn
underpinned by a Management Committee. The latter, whose
members were appointed by the Commerce and Economic
Development Bureau, is responsible for advising on the eligibility
and merits of applications seeking assistance from the Fund'.

Operation

It is the function of the Council to help consumers resolve their
complaints vis-a-vis the traders concerned by means of conciliation.
The Council may, if it considers appropriate or if the complainants
so request, refer cases of complaints to the Fund for consideration.
Consumers may also apply to the Fund directly for assistance.

Generally, the Fund, in examining an application for assistance, will
consider whether all other means of dispute resolution have been
exhausted and will assess the case for its merits against established
eligibility criteria. Such criteria include whether the case involves
significant consumer interest; whether a large group of consumers
have been or will potentially be adversely affected; whether the case
has a reasonable chance of success; whether the matter concerned
can promote the consumer cause and produce deterrent effects on
unscrupulous business practices; and whether it is practicable for the
Fund to offer timely assistance.
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1 See Annex A for the Membership of the Board of Administrators and Management Committee.
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Deliberation

During the year under review, the Management Committee held 3
meetings and resolved matters by circulation on 6 occasions, while
the Board of Administrators held 1 meeting and resolved matters by
circulation on 10 occasions.

Altogether, the Fund considered 15 applications of different
categories during the year under review. One of the applicants
reached a settlement of his claim with the trader during the Fund'’s
deliberation of his application.

After thorough consideration, the Fund declined 4 applications
relating to complaints about technology products, property
management and property-related services.

During the reporting period, the Fund granted assistance to 10
applications. However, 2 of these successful applications were
subsequently withdrawn during and shortly after the reporting
period respectively. The remaining applications are relating to
property-related services, dental services and beauty services
respectively.

Newly-Assisted Cases

1 Dental Services — Failure to Provide or Complete
Prepaid Treatment

This is a group of cases involving 6 assisted consumers. Each of
them has made prepayment either in part or in full to the dental
clinic in question for treatment of dental implant. According to the
assisted consumers, the dental clinic had ceased its dental business
before they received or completed the treatment. Apart from the
assisted consumers, the Council has received complaints of similar
nature from other consumers against the dental clinic and its related
companies, though not all of these consumers have applied to the
Fund for legal assistance.

Taking into account the number of consumers affected and the
highly questionable practice of the dental clinic, the Fund considered
that the matter involved significant consumer interest and decided
to grant assistance to the applicants to pursue their claims against
the trader(s) concerned. By the end of the reporting period, the Fund
was in the course of arranging the assisted consumers to sign the
Agreement with Assisted Consumer and would formally offer legal
assistance to them after execution of the Agreement.

2 Beauty Services — Personal Injuries Claim

This case is concerned with a claim for personal injuries suffered by the
assisted consumer in the course of a beauty treatment. The assisted
consumer claimed that the beauty salon was negligent in performing
the beauty treatment and thereby caused her personal injuries.

Considering the importance of consumer safety in receiving beauty
treatment, the Fund granted her the assistance to pursue a personal
injuries claim against the beauty salon. Shortly after the reporting
period, the Fund has appointed a firm of solicitors to represent the
assisted consumer.
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3 Home Renovation Services — Misrepresentation and
Prepayment

This case is concerned with agreements for renovation of domestic
premises and production of home furniture. The assisted consumer who
is said to be allergic to chemical smell, claimed that she was induced
to enter into the agreements by misrepresentation that the renovation
work and furniture produced would be free of any chemical smell. The
assisted consumer further claimed that the service providers failed to
undertake the work as agreed and refused to refund the deposits paid.

Taking into account, among others, the relatively large amount of the
deposits paid, the Fund granted assistance to the assisted consumer to
claim for, amongst others, refund of deposits from the service providers.
Preparation for commencement of legal proceedings was underway by
the solicitors instructed by the Fund for the assisted consumer.

Cases Carried Over From Previous Year

The Fund continued to work on the following cases brought forward
from the previous year.

1 Time-sharing Scheme

As reported last year, before making the application to the Fund, the
assisted consumer had commenced legal proceedings on his own. The
Fund therefore assisted him to continue the ongoing legal proceedings.
The trial was heard in the District Court in December 2014.

In early 2015, the Court delivered judgment in favour of the assisted
consumer after trial. The contract in question was held to be
unconscionable and was rescinded pursuant to a declaration made
by the Court. Further, the defendant company was ordered by the
Court to refund all the money paid by the assisted consumer.

2 Beauty Services — Claims of Fraudulent
Misrepresentation and Unconscionable Conduct

As reported in the previous year, the solicitors instructed by the
Fund had issued demand letters for the assisted consumer to the
beauty salon and its related company, which however denied the
assisted consumer’s claim. At the final stage of preparation for
commencement of legal proceedings, the solicitors and counsel
appointed by the Fund advised that the legal and factual issues
involved in the transactions in question were more complicated
than initially presented. As a result, further time was required in the
preparation for commencement of proceedings. According to the
solicitors appointed by the Fund, it is expected that legal action can
be commenced for the assisted consumer shortly after the reporting
period.

3 Headquarters and Professional Staff Cost Charged
by a Management Company of a Residential
Housing Estate

Before commencing legal proceedings to apply for declaratory relief
from the Court on the justifiability of the Headquarters and Professional
Staff Costs charged by the management company, pursuant to advice
by counsel, the solicitors appointed by the Fund issued a letter before
action to the solicitors for the management company, to which a reply
has been received. As at the end of the reporting period, the solicitors
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appointed by the Fund were taking instructions from the assisted
consumers on the reply from the management company'’s solicitors for
the further conduct of the intended legal proceedings.

Statistics

Since its establishment and up until the year under review, the Fund
has received a total of 1304 applications and has granted assistance
to 697 applications’.

Finance

The Fund is self-financed with income derived from:

(a) investing the capital sum in fixed deposits;

(b)charging applicants a fee of HK$100 each for cases within the
jurisdiction of the Small Claims Tribunal and HK$1,000 each for
other court cases;

(c) recovering legal costs from defendants in successful cases; and

(d) receiving from each successful case a contribution of 10% of the
money recovered by the assisted consumer.

As at 31 March 2015, the Fund had a balance of about HK$13.92
million®.
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During the year, Ms Miranda KWOK Pui-fong retired from the Board
of Administrators. Mr Alvin WONG Tak-wai was elected to the Board
as new Member.

As to the Management Committee of the Fund, Mr Anderson CHOW
Ka-ming, SC, resigned as Vice-Chairman of the Committee and
was succeeded by Mr Selwyn YU Sing-cheung, SC, as the new Vice-
Chairman. Member Mr Matthew LAM Kin-hong, MH, retired from the
Management Committee. Mr Edmond LAM King-fung joined as new
Member.

To Ms Miranda KWOK Pui-fong, Mr Anderson CHOW Ka-ming,
SC, and Mr Matthew LAM Kin-hong, MH, the Fund wishes to
express its heartfelt thanks for their staunch support and invaluable
contributions. It also welcomes the two new Members and Mr
Selwyn YU Sing-cheung, SC, the incoming new Vice-Chairman of the
Management Committee.

Last but not least, the Council would like to express gratitude to
members of the Board of Administrators and the Management
Committee, and to all those who have rendered assistance, including
counsel and solicitors engaged by the Fund, for all their efforts and
contributions to the Fund throughout the year. We are also very
grateful to the Government for the financial support to the Fund.
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2 See Annex B for the statistics of applications for the Fund.
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3 See Annex C for the Fund’s Auditors’ Report and Financial Statements for the period under review.
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APPLICATIONS FOR CONSUMER LEGAL ACTION FUND

T 28 % ab ik < v e W R R

Number of applications received since 30 Nov 1994

B1994F11B30HL R - EE&BENPHEHE

Problem solved during application 7EFRFEHAEAIRE S B AR
Under consideration {37E& EH

171

M
Assistance granted BEE S T BN B 697
Compensation recovered ES#5E
Out-of-court settlement FEFMN#E 190
Judgment obtained & B5EREEEY 17
Not pursued further REFIR #
No recovery prospect K& {E AT4E 465
Application withdrawn (AR5 7
Terminated by the Fund #&&#&1E 7
Referred to Legal Aid BEAEEEENE 1
In process R 10
Referred to Council for policy consideration 23 B Z2EBUER R IR 3
Referred to Council for conciliation/monitoring B HE S S/ B R 10
Assistance declined NS 412
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CONSUMER LEGAL ACTION FUND
HEBERNES
(Established in Hong Kong under a Deed of Trust)
(RBEFXBHEEFBNKIL)

Financial Statements

BECESES
For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE_ZT-—LF=A=+—HULEE

The English version of this financial statements shall prevail over the Chinese version for the purpose of interpretation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT i v7 1% S fifi 2 4 =&

TO THE TRUSTEE OF CONSUMER LEGAL ACTION FUND
(Established in Hong Kong under the Deed of Trust dated 30 November 1994)

We have audited the financial statements of Consumer Legal Action Fund (the
"Fund") set out on pages 111 to 121, which comprise the statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2015, and the income and expenditure statement,
the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Board of Administrators' Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Board of Administrators is responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, and for such internal control as the board of administrators
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with the agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the Fund's preparation of financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Fund's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the board of administrators, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of
the Fund's affairs as at 31 March 2015 and of its deficit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
27 July 2015
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CONSUMER LEGAL ACTION FUND SH&&EFRES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81 7§3Rk Annex C « fi§#5A
INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT W358
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 i Z—ZF—HF=A=1+—Hl5E
2015 2014
S S0 S
HK$ HK$
T AT
Income LN
Bank interest income SRITRISUA 163,982 119,018
Interest income from a held-to-maturity debt security FERSEBFZZZAEBRA - 35,323
Application fee from assisted consumers SHHEERRE 9,300 7,300
Sundry income FEIEA 901,193 386,287
1,074,475 547,928
Less: B
Expenditure =
Auditor's remuneration BRI 14,500 13,900
Administrative service expenses TR 2,710,000 2,354,000
Bank charges BITEM 4,100 2,850
Legal fees for assisted consumers SZEEEEEME 162,430 75,464
Amortisation of premium on a held-to-maturity debt security RAZIEES SR E < - 1,857
Sundry expenses FEIASTH 4,829 2,730
2,895,859 2,450,801
Deficit for the year FEBE (1,821,384) (1,902.873)




CONSUMER LEGAL ACTION FUND SH&&EFAES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B35 5 Annex C « fi§#5A
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION J# A bt
AT 31 MARCH 2015 R—&—HRE&=RB=+—H
NOTES 2015 2014
ET _F—_hF —F—uE
HK$ HK$
ETT BT
Current assets MENEE
Interest and other receivables I SR EABEUER TR 50,299 11,455
Bank balances SRITHESR 6 16,598,940 20,292,687
16,649,239 20,304,142
Current liabilities MENEE
Accounts payable and accrued expenses FEN RN IESTE R 17,594 2,207,113
Amount due to the Trustee FEN AR 7 2,710,000 2,354,000
2,727,594 4,561,113
Net current assets mEEEFE 13,921,645 15,743,029
Capital and reserve BARR R
Capital % 20,000,000 20,000,000
Accumulated deficit RHEEIE 6,078,355 (4,256,971)
13,921,645 15,743,029

The financial statements on pages 111 to 121 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Administrators on 27 July 2015 and

are signed on behalf by :

FNE 11 £ 121 ENFBEBRREN_F-—AF AT tERMTEESIENRERM WA TRREE:

Prof. Wong Yuk-shan
|EEILIHE
ADMINISTRATOR
BITERE

Ms Gilly Wong Fung-han

=Rzt

ADMINISTRATOR

BITERE
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 8 Z=ZF—hAF=A=1+—HLFE
Accumulated
Deficit
Capital 2i& Total
B BB fist |
HKS HKS HK$
BT AT BT
At 1 April 2013 RIZE—=HFNA—H 20,000,000 (2,354,098) 17,645,902
Deficit for the year FEEE - (1,902,873) (1,902,873
At 31 March 2014 RZE—NE=A=+—H 20,000,000 (4,256,971) 15,743,029
Deficit for the year FEBE - (1,821,384) (1,821,384)
At 31 March 2015 R_Z—hE=A=+—H 20,000,000 (6,078,355) 13,921,645




CONSUMER LEGAL ACTION FUND SH&&EFAES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81 %3R3k Annex C « fi§#5A
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS Bl it #
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 i Z—ZF—HF=A=1+—H1L5FE
2015 2014
=R —=-pE
HK$ HK$
FETT AT
Operating activities EEEE
Deficit for the year FERIE (1,821,384) (1,902,873)
Adjustments for: FTIIEEEL AR
Bank interest income HFATAIBUA (163,982) (119,018)
Interest income from a held-to-maturity debt security FEIBEEZE S EWA = (35,323)
Amortisation of premium on a held-to-maturity debt security FAIIBESESRE < - 1.857
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital MEBESEERIEBRENE (1,985,366) (2,055,357)
Decrease (increase) in other receivables Hith R F A (38h0) 7,480 (7,480)
Increase (decrease) in amount due to the Trustee JERNSFEAFIEZIE 0 CBA) 356,000 (20,000)
Decrease in accounts payable and accrued expenses FEN R R FESTE R B (2.189.519) (41.173)
Net cash used in operating activities EERIFTAZIAEFE (3,811,405)  (2,124,010)
Investing activities REEE
Interest received BEWFIE 117,658 251,597
Decrease (increase) in time deposits with original maturity over three months FEIH A =1{8 3,2 EHF RS GEIN) 4,057,246  (8,064,521)
Redemption of a held-to-maturity debt security RAEIIEER S EL - 3,950,000
Net cash from (used in) investing activities BEESEL (FIR) 2R& 58 4174904  (3,862,924)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents HERIREEEBRFHELEM (GRL) 363,499  (5,986,934)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year RARFEYNZHAERIREFEERR 12,228,166 18,215,100
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year MAEEZREREEEEIER 12,591,665 12,228,166
Time deposits with original maturity over three months FRIHBE =B ZEhTER 4,007,275 8,064,521
Total bank balances IRITHERRIEEE 16,598940 20,292,487

114



CONSUMER LEGAL ACTION FUND JE&EFNES

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 84753k

Annex C « i8R

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W% &1

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 & Z_F—hAF=A=1+—HLFE

1 OBJECTIVES AND OPERATION OF THE FUND

The Consumer Legal Action Fund (the "Fund") was established on 30
November 1994 under a Deed of Trust with the Consumer Council as
the trustee (the "Trustee") for the purpose of offering financial assistance
to consumers in seeking legal redress, remedies and protection. The
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (the
"HKSAR") has granted a sum of HK$10 million as initial capital to the
Fund. The capital should be repayable to the HKSAR upon termination.
Additional capital amounting to HK$10 million was further injected by the
HKSAR to the fund on 6 September 2010 increasing the capital to HK$20
million.

The address of the registered office and principal place of operation of the
Trustee is 22nd Floor, K. Wah Centre, 191 Java Road, North Point, Hong
Kong.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is
same as the functional currency of the Fund.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS ("HKFRSs")

Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The fund has applied for the first time in the current year the following
amendments to HKFRSs and a new Interpretation issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA").

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and

Financial Liabilities

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets

Amendments to HKAS 36

Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting

Amendments to HKAS 39

HK(IFRIC) - Int 21 Levies

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs and the new Interpretation
in the current year has had no material impact on these financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W% W&

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 & Z-F—hAF=A=1+—HLFE

2 APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") — continued

2 BRI RASMERT 2B RM B EHED ("HEH
BERELER, ) —F
EAETAERLZ Z #7] RG] < BB FaR 42 2R)

ARESW KRR RM T BAEERERBZHT
R RIERT 2 BB %%%Eif‘% Al

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Fund has not early applied the following new and revised HKFRSs that
have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 - EAEVYBHREESR S S
2012 Cycle' (CHEN) FECFE E&L‘
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011 - EAEVYBHREESR :%E_\_ﬂijx::%_z
2013 Cycle’ (CHEN) FZEERHE
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012 - BEBY B RS ER B FETFMN
2014 Cycle® (CHEN) EEERE

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 11

HKFRS ¢

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16

and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 27

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture®

Accounting for Acqmsmons of Interests in
Joint Operations®

Financial Instruments*
. 5
Revenue from Contracts with Customers
. e .3
Disclosure Initiative

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation’

Agriculture: Bearer Plants®

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions’

Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with limited

exceptions

? Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

® Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

* Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

® Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

The Board of Administrators anticipates that the application of the above
new and revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the results and the

financial position of the Fund.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W% &1

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 & Z_F—hAF=A=1+—HLFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 FEEFEBR

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by HKICPA.

Basis ofpreparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for services. The principal accounting policies adopted
are as follows:

Revenue recognition

Interest income from a financial assets is recognised when it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Fund and the amount of income
can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimate future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Cost of financial assistance

All costs connected with the provision of financial assistance rendered to
consumers are recorded on an accrual basis and charged against income
and expenditure account in the period incurred. Any costs recoverable
from assisted consumers are recorded as income upon receipt.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Fund
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The Fund's financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified as loans and receivables. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of financial assets and is determined
at the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 3 FEFETBR—E

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets - continued
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including interest
and other receivables and bank balances) are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses
(see accounting policy on impairment on financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate,
except for short-term receivables where the recognition of interest would
be immaterial.

Impairment on financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

e breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment
loss recognised is the difference between the asset's carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset's original effective interest rate. If, in a subsequent period, the
amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through income
or expenditure to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the
date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification of debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Fund are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Fund after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Fund are recognised at the proceed received,
net of direct issue costs.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 3 FESIHBR—E

Financial instruments - continued

Financial liabilities and equity instruments - continued
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including accounts payable and accrued expenses, and
amount due to the Trustee) are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments (including all fee paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premium or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Derecognition

The Fund derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to another entity. If the Fund neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Fund continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated liability.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in
the income and expenditure statement.

The Fund derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Fund's obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the income and
expenditure statement.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The capital structure of the Fund consists of capital from HKSAR and
accumulated surplus, if any.

The HKSAR has granted a sum of HK$20 million as capital to the Fund. The
Board of Administrators of the Fund manages the Fund’s capital to ensure
that the Fund will be able to continue as a going concern. The overall
strategy of capital management remains unchanged from prior year.
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5 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 5 &mTH
a Categories of financial instruments B Sr TR
2015 2014
—=— =
HK$ HK$
BIT BT
Financial assets EMEE
Loans and receivables (including ERREUGIE (BERENRESSE)
cash and cash equivalents) 16,649.239 20.304.142
Financial liabilities EMafk
Financial liabilities at amortised cost DU ER At 2N as 2.727,594 4,561,113

b Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Fund's major financial instruments include interest and other
receivables, bank balances, accounts payable and accrued expenses,
and amount due to the Trustee.

The risks associated with these financial instruments and the policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The Board of
Administrators of the Fund manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Credit risk

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because majority of the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings.

Market risk
Foreign exchange risk

The Fund's functional currency is Hong Kong dollars since the
transactions are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Accordingly,
the Board of Administrators of the Fund considers the foreign exchange
risk is not significant.

Interest rate risk

The Fund has no significant interest rate risk as it does not have any
interest-bearing financial assets or financial liabilities other than cash
placed with financial institutions.

Liquidity risk
The Fund is exposed to minimal liquidity risk as the Board of
Administrators closely monitors its cash flow.

The earliest date on which the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities, representing non-interest bearing financial liabilities of the
Fund, can be required to pay is 3 months or less.

¢ Fairvalue

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined
in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis.

The Board of Administrators of the Fund considers that the carrying
values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised
cost in the financial statements approximate their fair values.
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6 BANK BALANCES 6 SRITHEER

Bank balances comprise cash and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less and time deposits of HK$4,007,275 (2014:
HK$8,064,521) with an original maturity over three months, and carry
interest at market rates which ranged from 0.6% to 1.6% (2014: 0.7% to
1.45%) per annum.

AMOUNT DUE TO THE TRUSTEE

The amount represents administrative service expenses payable to the
Trustee, details of which are set out in note 8. The amount is unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Fund incurred administrative service expenses
amounted to HK$2,710,000 (2014: HK$2,354,000) for the administrative
service and office support (comprising salary costs and attributable
overheads) provided to the Fund. The recharge by the Trustee is in
accordance with the provision of the Trust Deed governing the Fund and
approved by both the Council and the Board of Administrators of the
Fund.
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